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       1                         P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  We are back on the record.

       3       And when we last left, staff was doing cross -- let me

       4       correct that, staff was conducting the cross-examination

       5       of Doctor Morley, right?

       6                 MS. BROWN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  You're recognized.

       8                           ROSEMARY MORLEY

       9       continues his testimony under oath from Volume 1:

      10                     CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION

      11       BY MS. BROWN:

      12            Q.   Just one follow-up question, Ms. Morley.

      13                 There have been several questions asked about

      14       the capital costs of the 18-inch, 36-mile oil and gas

      15       pipeline that FPL owns.  I would like to ask for a

      16       late-filed exhibit to answer this question.  Does FPL

      17       include any capital costs of the 18-inch, 36-mile

      18       oil/gas pipeline in its electric rate base; and, if so,

      19       what amounts are in rate base or in fuel clauses?

      20            A.   I don't know the answer to that question.  We

      21       are certainly willing to file a late-filed exhibit

      22       offering all of that information.  What I do know is

      23       that there was a question in discovery asking about the

      24       capital costs of gas transportation, capital costs, and

      25       if they are in FPL's rate base, and if we make a return
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       1       on that.  And in answer to that discovery question the

       2       answer was yes, we do have examples of that.

       3                 But in terms of the specific pipeline you

       4       asked about, I don't know that answer, but we are

       5       certainly ready to answer it in a late-filed exhibit.

       6                 MS. BROWN:  Well, that would be great and we

       7       would like that.

       8                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  For the record, and for the

       9       parties and Commissioners, that will be Exhibit Number

      10       96, Exhibit Number 96.

      11                 (Late-filed Exhibit Number 96 marked for

      12       identification.)

      13                 MS. BROWN:  And we could call that Rate Base

      14       Recovery of 18-inch Pipeline Capital Costs.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Ms. Brown.

      16                 MS. BROWN:  I'm sorry.  Mr. Chairman, we have

      17       no further questions.

      18                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Any questions from the

      19       bench?

      20                 Doctor Morley will be with us for rebuttal, as

      21       well, is that correct?

      22                 MR. GOORLAND:  That's correct.

      23                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  All right, then,

      24       let's do redirect, then.  You're recognized.

      25                 MR. GOORLAND:  At this point FPL has no
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       1       redirect, and we would ask that Doctor Morley's exhibits

       2       be moved into the record.

       3                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners, for the

       4       record, that would be exhibits beginning at Number 13

       5       going through to -- is it 33?

       6                 MR. GOORLAND:  That's correct.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self.

       8                 MR. SELF:  No objections.

       9                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it

      10       done.

      11                 Hang on a second, Doctor Morley, before you

      12       go.  So we're entering in Exhibits 13 through 33,

      13       Commissioners.  These are the ones with Doctor Morley.

      14                 MR. SELF:  Mr. Chairman?

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, sir.

      16                 MR. SELF:  I think, for the record -- are any

      17       of those rebuttal exhibits?  I don't care whether we

      18       move them now or later, I just --

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  I'm thinking they are

      20       direct.  Because the way I have my sheet here is that

      21       this is all for direct.

      22                 MR. GOORLAND:  They are.

      23                 MR. SELF:  Thank you.

      24                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Thank you.  No

      25       problem.
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       1                 Commissioners, before we allow Doctor Morley

       2       to step down -- do you have any questions, Commissioner

       3       Skop?

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  No.

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay, thank you.  You are on

       6       recess, Doctor Morley.  Be on your best behavior, okay.

       7                 MR. MORROW:  I'll try.

       8                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Call your next witness.

       9                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      10                 I would call Mr. Collins to the stand.  And

      11       Mr. Collins has not been previously sworn.

      12                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  He has not been sworn in?

      13       Okay, no problem.

      14                 Mr. Collins, when you get there, if you would

      15       be so kind to stand and raise your right hand.  We'll go

      16       ahead on and administer the oath to you.

      17                 (Witness sworn.)

      18                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Please be

      19       seated.  You may proceed.

      20                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

      21                          CLINTON M. COLLINS

      22       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power and

      23       Light Company, and having been duly sworn, testified as

      24       follows:

      25                         DIRECT EXAMINATION
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       1       BY MR. BUTLER:

       2            Q.   Mr. Collins, would you please state your name

       3       and business address for the record?

       4            A.   My name is Clinton M. Collins, and my business

       5       address is 1000 Louisiana Street, Houston, Texas.

       6            Q.   By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

       7            A.   I am employed by the U.S. Gas SS Group for

       8       FPL.

       9            Q.   And what is your position?

      10            A.   I am Director of Gas Infrastructure.

      11            Q.   Thank you.

      12                 Have you prepared and caused to be filed 29

      13       pages of prefiled direct testimony with attached

      14       Exhibits CMC-1 through CMC-3 in this proceeding?

      15            A.   That is correct.

      16            Q.   Did you also cause to be filed an errata to

      17       your testimony on July 24, 2009?

      18            A.   That is correct.

      19            Q.   Do you have any further changes or revisions

      20       to your prefiled direct testimony?

      21            A.   With respect to the errata on Page 4 of my

      22       Direct Testimony, I noticed that in Line 2, the number

      23       there should reflect 1.531 billion, and that is to be

      24       consistent with the errata that I had submitted.

      25            Q.   Thank you.  With those changes, if I asked you
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       1       the same questions contained in your direct testimony,

       2       would your answers be the same?

       3            A.   They would be.

       4                 MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman, I would ask that

       5       Mr. Collins' prefiled direct testimony be inserted into

       6       the record as though read.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of

       8       the witness will be inserted into the record as though

       9       read.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:   Thank you.  And I would note

      11       that his exhibits are identified in Staff's

      12       Comprehensive Exhibit List as Exhibits 10 through 12.

      13                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  For identification purposes,

      14       10, 11, and 12.

      15                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

      16

      17
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      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. BUTLER:

       2            Q.   And I would ask Mr. Collins at this point to

       3       summarize his testimony.

       4            A.   Good afternoon, Commissioners.  The scope of

       5       my testimony today will discuss the Florida EnergySecure

       6       Line as it is currently envisioned and will focus on

       7       four primary areas.

       8                 First, the technical description of the

       9       proposed project and unique advantages that the

      10       facilities offer to FPL customers in the state of

      11       Florida.  Second, a description of FPL's strong

      12       qualifications and expertise to undertake a project of

      13       this scope.  Third, I will discuss the expandability of

      14       the pipeline to allow for future growth.  And, fourth,

      15       the subsequent operations of the Florida EnergySecure

      16       Line and how proposed facilities are an extension of

      17       FPL's existing safe and reliable operations.

      18                 As with any project of this scope and

      19       magnitude, considerable engineering design and

      20       decision-making precedes the project final design.  Like

      21       building new generation capabilities or new electric

      22       transmission lines, the preliminary engineering for the

      23       pipeline included an evaluation to optimize the size of

      24       the pipeline to allow the project to meet FPL's

      25       immediate needs and still allow for reasonable growth.
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       1                 I will discuss the engineering practices that

       2       have been and will be employed as a route and geology of

       3       the 30-mile corridor are better defined.  I will also

       4       describe the practices that will be used to ensure the

       5       facilities are built and operated in a cost-efficient,

       6       safe, and environmentally conscientious manner.

       7                 FPL is proposing to construct the 30-inch

       8       diameter mainline pipeline which will originate in

       9       Bradford County near the existing Florida Transmission

      10       Station 16, and will traverse approximately 280 miles to

      11       FPL's existing Martin Power Plant.  Having the

      12       EnergySecure Line connect these two major points is very

      13       strategic as it essentially creates an in-state header

      14       with a northern and southern hub which enhances natural

      15       gas reliability and supply diversity for the state of

      16       Florida and allows access to broader more abundant

      17       reserves of natural gas.

      18                 The utilization of the proposed 30-inch main

      19       line along with FPL's existing owned, operated, and

      20       maintained infrastructure, which includes the existing

      21       36 miles of 18-inch lateral, will be an integral part of

      22       serving FPL's new modernization projects at Cape

      23       Canaveral and Riveria Beach.  While the initial phase of

      24       the project will allow for FPL to provide the most

      25       cost-effective solution for providing natural gas to
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       1       these modernizations, it will also provide the

       2       flexibility to meet future capacity needs as they arise.

       3                 FPL and its affiliates have considerable

       4       experience in managing very complex and schedule

       5       sensitive projects in the energy industry.  In many

       6       respects these projects all require very similar skills

       7       and management capabilities; real estate acquisition,

       8       environmental due diligence and permitting, engineering,

       9       procurement, logistical support, and construction

      10       management, many of which must be executed within very

      11       defined and constrained work areas or along linear

      12       corridors.

      13                 The ability to manage a project of this size

      14       and scope is easily reflected in the skill sets that FPL

      15       displays in support of all of its projects.  The

      16       proposed EnergySecure Line will be simply another

      17       addition to the existing 70 miles of pipeline, four fuel

      18       terminals, and various pumping stations that FPL

      19       currently owns and operates to support its current

      20       generation needs.  FPL has operated these systems safely

      21       and reliably for many years.

      22                 Without doubt, the EnergySecure Line as

      23       proposed will provide FPL customers and the state of

      24       Florida with critical infrastructure that will provide a

      25       reliable and cost-effective solution to meeting FPL's
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       1       current and future natural gas demand for electric

       2       generation.

       3                 I thank you for your time and welcome your

       4       comments.

       5                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you, Mr. Collins.

       6                 I tender the witness for cross-examination.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

       8                 Mr. Self.

       9                 MR. SELF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      10                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      11       BY MR. SELF:

      12            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Collins.  I'm Floyd Self

      13       representing FGT.

      14            A.   Good afternoon.

      15            Q.   This morning we have had some questions and

      16       discussions regarding some of the existing pipeline

      17       segments that FPL currently owns and operates.  Were you

      18       present for any of that discussion?

      19            A.   Yes, sir, I was.

      20            Q.   Okay.  Would it be correct to classify those

      21       pipeline segments as laterals?

      22            A.   They are pipelines that were built to support

      23       the infrastructure of their plants.  As far as what you

      24       want to call them, they are pipelines to actually move

      25       product from the 45th Street terminal to Martin, as well
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       1       as other pipelines that were built to support other

       2       infrastructures that they have on their system.

       3            Q.   Okay.  Well, looking at Page 4 of your

       4       testimony, if I may.  Do you have that?

       5            A.   Yes, sir.

       6            Q.   On Line 6 you talk about how the proposed

       7       pipeline is a 30-inch diameter, approximately 280-mile

       8       mainline pipeline, do you see that?

       9            A.   Yes, sir.

      10            Q.   And then down a couple more lines on Line 9,

      11       you talk about approximately 23 miles of laterals

      12       ranging in diameter from 20 to 24 inches.  Do you see

      13       that?

      14            A.   That is correct.

      15            Q.   How would you define a lateral?

      16            A.   It is any segment of the pipeline that is not,

      17       in my mind, considered part of the mainline, the actual

      18       physical assets connecting the two hubs.  So anything

      19       that is stretching off of that mainline I would refer to

      20       as a lateral.

      21            Q.   Would it be fair to say that a lateral only

      22       serves one receipt point?

      23            A.   No, that's not a good assumption.  Laterals

      24       can be run for multiple miles with various different

      25       deliveries or receipts onto those laterals.  It's just
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       1       an extension of the mainline or the mainline facilities.

       2            Q.   Well, then how would you define the mainline

       3       pipeline, what's a mainline pipeline?

       4            A.   Essentially, the mainline is referred to in

       5       the industry as the trunk line, the actual main capacity

       6       that the pipeline flows through.  There can be various

       7       capacities that come onto a system or off a system off

       8       of various laterals that come off of that main trunk

       9       line.

      10            Q.   Okay.  Now, with respect to mainline

      11       pipelines, it's true, I believe, that FPL has never

      12       constructed a 280-mile mainline pipeline before, have

      13       they?

      14            A.   Not that I'm aware of.  However, they have

      15       constructed various different infrastructure within the

      16       state.  Roughly, now, I think they have 70 miles of

      17       pipeline that they currently operate to support their

      18       facilities, ranging in 30-inch diameter down to smaller

      19       laterals, as far as I'm aware of, a six-inch.  So they

      20       have constructed many different pipelines within the

      21       state to support their needs.

      22            Q.   All right.  And those smaller pipelines,

      23       generally they serve one plant, correct?

      24            A.   The six-inch that I just referred to primarily

      25       is used to connect FGT's existing system to the 45th
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       1       Street Terminal, and it's primarily used for launching

       2       of pigs when they are moving product up to the 45th

       3       Street Terminal.  But it's an integral part of FPL's

       4       overall operations and how they move product through

       5       their system.

       6            Q.   On Page 20 of your Direct, if you want to turn

       7       there, the question and answer that runs from Line 6 to

       8       16, you indicate that FPL is considering contracting

       9       with a pipeline construction management company.  If FPL

      10       does, in fact -- well, first off, has FPL contracted

      11       with such a management company at this point?

      12            A.   No, we have not.  We would not move forward

      13       with actually even considering something like that until

      14       the project was moving forward from an execution

      15       standpoint.  Right now the way we have looked at the

      16       project is to execute it ourselves with our internal

      17       resources.  However, we would not be opposed to

      18       considering that, and I think that was the intent of the

      19       question and the answer here is that that is an option

      20       that would still be on the table for consideration if we

      21       felt like it was in the best interest of executing on

      22       the project.

      23            Q.   And if, in fact, FPL contracted with a

      24       construction management company, the cost of that would

      25       also be ultimately, if FPL's proposal is accepted,
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       1       rolled into the rate base, as well, correct?

       2            A.   That is correct.  However, the costs

       3       associated with executing on the project are currently

       4       in the capital costs that we have developed for the

       5       project, so if we opted to go in this fashion, it would

       6       only be to the benefit of the customers.

       7            Q.   If you could look at Page 17 of your

       8       testimony, please.  Starting with Line 16, you mention

       9       this Port of Palm Beach to Martin Plant pipeline that

      10       was built in 1979.  Do you see that there on Lines 20

      11       and 21?

      12            A.   Yes, sir.

      13            Q.   Do you know if and when FPL has built any

      14       other pipelines subsequent to this 1979 pipeline?

      15            A.   To my knowledge, the Martin north lateral, the

      16       20-inch, 17-mile Martin north lateral was built in 1993.

      17       And I believe those facilities just here recently have

      18       been turned over to FGT under Phase 8 negotiations for

      19       their operations.  So those facilities, in fact, to my

      20       knowledge, were built in 1993, but I can't confirm that

      21       date.

      22                 MR. SELF:  Mr. Chairman, we have no further

      23       questions.

      24                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Commissioners,

      25       I'm going to go to staff and then I'll come back to the
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       1       bench.

       2                 MS. BROWN:  Staff has no questions.

       3                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Give us a second

       4       here.

       5                 Commissioner Skop, you're recognized.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

       7                 Good afternoon, Mr. Collins.

       8                 THE WITNESS:  Good afternoon.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  If I could refer you to

      10       Page 8 of your prefiled testimony, please.  And

      11       beginning with Line 2 through Line 11, they talk about

      12       the second compressor station at the 45th Street

      13       Terminal, and basically that facility will provide

      14       natural gas service to the Riveria Beach Energy Center

      15       during those periods when the 18-inch oil and natural

      16       gas pipeline is being utilized for oil transportation,

      17       and they also mention further down about replacing the

      18       six-inch with a 20-inch pipe to connect to the FGT.

      19                 Can you further elaborate on that situation to

      20       the extent that if you look at the large charts behind

      21       you, you have what is described as the mainline

      22       terminating down at the Martin Plant, and then the

      23       remainder of that pipeline capacity to move it down to

      24       Riveria Beach is the existing 36-mile, 18-inch pipe.

      25                 So it's almost as if -- I'm trying to get a
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       1       little clarification there, because it seems to me that

       2       when that pipeline is being utilized for oil

       3       transportation, they have to bypass the proposed

       4       pipeline and then draw from FGT to service the Riveria

       5       Beach plant.  So if you could clarify that for me, I

       6       would appreciate it.

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  The normal flow now

       8       before the EnergySecure Line will be built is for

       9       product to move from -- as it comes into the tankers at

      10       the Port of Palm Beach, it flows through a 30-inch line

      11       to the 45th Street Terminal, and then from the 45th

      12       Street Terminal, it is then put in the 18-inch line

      13       which then transports and pumped through the 18-inch

      14       line to service Martin Plant, and that's the primary use

      15       for it now.

      16                 Once the line has product in it, and they are

      17       ready to move the rest of that product up, they actually

      18       put a pig, or, if you will, a cork in the pipeline.

      19       They utilize an existing six-inch interconnect that they

      20       have with FGT at the Turnpike.  They move gas through

      21       that six-inch for three miles back to the 45th Street

      22       Terminal, and then they use the pressure of that gas to

      23       push the pig and the reminder of that product up to the

      24       Martin Terminal.  So that is the normal process in the

      25       utilization of that six-inch line.
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       1                 Once the actual product all is received at the

       2       Martin Terminal and the line is actually free of

       3       liquids, then they open up an existing side gate valve

       4       which allows that existing Martin South Interconnect to

       5       feed gas into that 18-inch so it can actually feed the

       6       Martin Plant from gas as well from the south.  So it's

       7       referred to as the Martin South Interconnect.

       8                 When the EnergySecure Line is put in place,

       9       the majority of gas flow will be coming from the north

      10       into Martin.  The 18-inch primary use then will be to

      11       flow gas from north to south to the 45th Street

      12       Terminal.  A new three miles of pipeline will be built

      13       from the 45th Street Terminal to the Riviera plant to

      14       provide the normal day-to-day service through the

      15       EnergySecure facilities.

      16                 In those events when we want to move product

      17       from the terminal at 45th Street, because we still have

      18       the ability to take product into the 45th Street from

      19       the Port of Palm Beach because the 30-inch pipeline is

      20       dedicated for that service, in those events when we want

      21       to move product from the 45th Street Terminal to Martin

      22       for reliability purposes, we have proposed to take up

      23       that existing six-inch line which currently is only used

      24       to launch the pigs to take the remainder of the product

      25       out of the pipeline, and we will relay that with 20-inch
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       1       diameter pipeline, therefore allowing us to have a full

       2       interconnect with FGT at the Turnpike through the 45th

       3       Street Terminal with that take up and relay of

       4       three miles of 20-inch, and then the three miles that

       5       exist with the EnergySecure Line from the 45th Street

       6       Terminal to the Riviera plant.

       7                 Now, because we are unable to guarantee

       8       pressures from FGT to support the event when that does

       9       happen, we propose to install two small boost

      10       compressions at the 45th Street Terminal to allow us to

      11       guarantee that we have adequate pressures and throughput

      12       from our existing interconnect with FGT at the Martin

      13       south lateral.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Commissioners.

      16                 Anything further from the bench?

      17                 Okay.  Mr. Butler.

      18                 MR. BUTLER:  I have very brief redirect.  It's

      19       going to come down considerably from that elevated level

      20       just described.

      21                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      22       BY MR. BUTLER:

      23            Q.   Would you please define pig and product.

      24            A.   Product is generically referred to of any

      25       oil-based type product that is moved through the line.
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       1       It could be a one percent, or a .9 percent fuel, diesel,

       2       kerosene, any type of product.  We generically in the

       3       industry refer to that as just a product, because

       4       typically a product pipeline can be used for various

       5       different types of liquids to flow through them.  So I

       6       hope -- does that answer your question?

       7            Q.   That does.  Now we will move on to the pig.

       8            A.   Pig, I think I actually covered in one of my

       9       interrogatories.  But pig is not really an acronym.  It

      10       generically refers to any obstacle that we put in the

      11       pipeline to propel down the pipeline for various

      12       different reasons.  For either cleaning purposes, for

      13       internal inspections, for sizing to make sure that the

      14       quality of the pipeline is maintained.

      15                 And we refer to one type of pig as a smart

      16       pig, or an intelligent pig, which is actually a computer

      17       that we will run through the pipeline periodically to

      18       validate the integrity of the facilities and make sure

      19       that there are no anomalies or coatings anywhere in the

      20       system.  It would be part of our normal operations to

      21       make sure that we validate the integrity of those

      22       facilities so that we never have any issues with them.

      23                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you, Mr. Collins.

      24                 That's all that I have.

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Exhibits.
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       1                 MR. BUTLER:  I would move the admission of

       2       Exhibits 10, 11, and 12.

       3                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self?

       4                 MR. SELF:  No objection.

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it

       6       done.

       7                 (Exhibit Numbers 10, 11, and 12 admitted into

       8       the record.)

       9                 MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Collins does not have

      10       rebuttal testimony, so I believe it would be appropriate

      11       to excuse him at this point.

      12                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Collins, this is your

      13       lucky day.

      14                 Commissioner Skop.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      16                 Mr. Collins, I know that on Page 3 of your

      17       prefiled testimony, CMC-3 provided a summary of the

      18       costs.  In terms of asking specific costs as to rate

      19       impact when the proposed pipeline would go into service,

      20       who would be the best witness, would it be you, or

      21       witness -- I'm trying to pronounce his name.

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  Enjamio.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.

      24                 THE WITNESS:  Witness Enjamio.

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  All right.  Thank you.
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       1                 Anything further from the bench?

       2                 Thank you, sir, and you are excused.

       3                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       4                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Call your next witness.

       5                 MR. PERKO:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       6                 FPL calls Heather Stubblefield.

       7                 (Pause.)

       8                 MR. PERKO:  Good afternoon, Ms. Stubblefield.

       9       Have you been sworn?

      10                 THE WITNESS:  I have not.

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Would you please

      12       stand and raise your right hand.

      13                 (Witness sworn.)

      14                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Please be

      15       seated.

      16                       HEATHER C. STUBBLEFIELD

      17       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power and

      18       Light, and having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

      19                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

      20       BY MR. PERKO:

      21            Q.   And could you please state your full name and

      22       business address for the record.

      23            A.   Yes.  My name is Heather Stubblefield.  My

      24       business address is 700 Universe Boulevard, Juno Beach,

      25       Florida 33408.
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       1            Q.   By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

       2            A.   I am employed by Florida Power and Light

       3       Company as Manager of Project Development.

       4            Q.   Ms. Stubblefield, did you prepare and have

       5       occasion to file 18 pages of Direct Testimony in this

       6       proceeding?

       7            A.   Yes, I did.

       8            Q.   And did you attach to that testimony three

       9       exhibits labeled HCS-1, HCS-2, and HCS-3?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   Did you prepare an errata for your testimony?

      12            A.   Yes, I did.

      13            Q.   And that was filed on July 24th?

      14            A.   Yes.

      15            Q.   Other than the changes indicated in your

      16       errata, do you have any additional changes to your

      17       testimony or exhibits?

      18            A.   No, I do not.

      19            Q.   If I were to ask you the questions in your

      20       testimony today, would your answers be the same?

      21            A.   Yes, they would.

      22                 MR. PERKO:  At this time, Mr. Chairman, I

      23       would request that Ms. Stubblefield's Direct Testimony

      24       be inserted into the record as though read.

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of
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       1       the witness will be inserted into the record as though

       2       read.

       3
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       1       BY MR. PERKO:

       2            Q.   Ms. Stubblefield, could you please provide

       3       your summary.

       4            A.   Yes.  Good afternoon, Chairman Carter and

       5       Commissioners.  The purpose of my testimony is to

       6       explain the process that FPL used to solicit proposals

       7       for gas transportation to meet, at a minimum, the gas

       8       requirements of the Cape Canaveral next generation clean

       9       energy center and the Riveria Beach next generation

      10       clean energy center modernization projects, and to

      11       describe the results of that solicitation process.

      12                 The solicitation process consisted of issuing

      13       a solicitation letter to seven pipeline companies

      14       capable of providing the transportation services that

      15       FPL required.  FPL requested that the respondents

      16       consider three potential pipeline alternatives and a

      17       number of volume scenarios.

      18                 The first pipeline alternative designated the

      19       interstate pipeline alternative was based on the

      20       respondent developing a new pipeline or upgrading an

      21       existing pipeline from Transcontinental Pipeline

      22       Company's, or Transco's, Compressor Station Number 85 in

      23       Chocktaw County, Alabama, to FPL's modernization

      24       projects.

      25                 The second alternative designated the upstream
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       1       pipeline segment allowed the parties to submit a

       2       proposal based on providing only the segment of the

       3       pipeline needed to deliver gas from Transco Station 85

       4       to Florida Gas Transportation, or FGT's Compressor

       5       Station Number 16 in Bradford County, Florida.

       6                 The third alternative, designated the Florida

       7       pipeline segment, was based on the respondent providing

       8       only the segment of the pipeline needed to deliver gas

       9       from FGT's Station 16 to FPL's modernization projects.

      10                 The solicitation letter also informed

      11       respondents of FPL's intentions to develop an intrastate

      12       pipeline as an alternative to the third-party proposals.

      13       The solicitation letter resulted in a significant number

      14       of proposals.

      15                 Due to various factors, FPL elected to focus

      16       on the proposals for 400 and 600 million cubic feet per

      17       day.  FPL evaluated the various proposals to determine

      18       the lowest cost proposed for each of the three pipeline

      19       scenarios.  FPL then conducted a life cycle economic

      20       analysis to determine which proposal, either the

      21       interstate pipeline proposal, or a combined upstream

      22       pipeline segment, Florida pipeline segment proposal

      23       resulted in the lowest cost to customers.

      24                 The results of FPL's analysis as confirmed by

      25       the independent analysis of FPL Witness Sexton indicated
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       1       that the proposal that provided the lowest life cycle

       2       cost to the customer and the greatest supply diversity

       3       was a combined project which included an upstream

       4       pipeline segment proposed by a third-party natural gas

       5       transmission company referred to as Company E for

       6       confidentiality purposes and the Florida EnergySecure

       7       Line proposed by FPL.

       8                 MR. BUTLER:  We tender the witness for

       9       cross-examination.

      10                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

      11                 Mr. Self.

      12                 MR. SELF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      13                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      14       BY MR. SELF:

      15            Q.   Good afternoon, Ms. Stubblefield.  I'm Floyd

      16       Self representing FGT, and I've got a couple of

      17       questions about your testimony.

      18                 As I understand the process, the solicitation

      19       process really began in early 2008, is that correct?

      20            A.   That is correct.

      21            Q.   And at that time FPL was looking forward to

      22       obtaining transportation both for the Cape Canaveral and

      23       Riveria Beach modernization projects, as well as for two

      24       new greenfield power plants that were anticipated in the

      25       2015 to 2017 time frame, is that correct?
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       1            A.   Correct.  The solicitation letter provided a

       2       number of volume scenarios including 400, 800, and a

       3       Bcf.

       4            Q.   And that was because you were contemplating

       5       potentially four plants being served?

       6            A.   Correct.

       7            Q.   And, in fact, in FPL's 2008 Ten-Year Site

       8       Plan, it does, in fact, list these two new greenfield

       9       plants for the 2015 to 2017 time period, correct?

      10            A.   Correct.

      11            Q.   And at the time that the formal letters

      12       inviting responses to FPL's solicitation were sent out

      13       in July of 2008, at that time FPL was still

      14       contemplating transportation for, again, the Cape and

      15       Riviera Plant projects as well as the two new greenfield

      16       plants, correct?

      17            A.   Correct.

      18            Q.   Now, subsequent to the issuance of those

      19       July 2008 solicitation letters, you became aware that

      20       the load forecasts were being reduced, is that true?

      21            A.   That is correct.

      22            Q.   And, in fact, in the subsequent 2009 Ten-Year

      23       Site Plan, those two new greenfield power plants that

      24       had been in the 2008 site plan are not in the 2009 site

      25       plan, correct?
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       1            A.   Correct.

       2            Q.   Now, I believe as a consequence of those lower

       3       load forecasts you made a follow-up request to the

       4       solicitation respondents that you discuss at Page 3 of

       5       your direct testimony, is that correct?

       6            A.   That is correct.

       7            Q.   Now, by eliminating the two new power plants,

       8       in terms of the solicitation process, the unmet

       9       transportation need that you had at that point was just

      10       for the Cape and Riveria plants, correct?

      11            A.   That's correct, for 400 million cubic feet per

      12       day.

      13            Q.   All right.  And notwithstanding the fact that

      14       you only needed 400 million cubic feet a day for the

      15       Cape and Riveria plants, nevertheless in the follow-up

      16       solicitation that you did you were still asking for

      17       600 million cubic feet, correct?

      18            A.   Right.  As I stated in my testimony, one of

      19       the purposes for going back and requesting the 600 a day

      20       alternative was to see potentially what parties may be

      21       willing to propose for new infrastructure.  When we

      22       received the original proposals from the respondents,

      23       there was no party who was willing to propose new

      24       infrastructure into the state for a quantity of only 400

      25       a day.  So it was important to us to see potentially,
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       1       since we had asked for 800 in a Bcf to see if, perhaps,

       2       a 600 scenario would allow for new infrastructure to be

       3       brought in the state.  The feedback we got from the

       4       respondents was if we could increase it to that level

       5       that we would get more interest in bringing the new

       6       infrastructure in, so we pursued the 600 alternative.

       7            Q.   And by the new infrastructure, you are talking

       8       about a pipeline that would not be provided by one of

       9       the incumbent pipeline companies that currently serve

      10       FPL?

      11            A.   No, it could be provided by one of the

      12       incumbent pipelines.  We just wanted a new distinct

      13       pipeline system or route.  So one of the existing

      14       pipeline companies could have proposed a project that

      15       brought new infrastructure in in addition to their

      16       existing infrastructure.  But, again, we were trying to

      17       see what we could do to bring new infrastructure into

      18       the state of Florida.

      19            Q.   Now, as I understand from some of the other

      20       witnesses, the fact that you only needed 400 million

      21       cubic feet a day for the Cape and Riveria Plants leaves

      22       you with this 200 million in excess capacity, correct?

      23            A.   I would like to clarify that point slightly.

      24       We talk about the excess 200.  In reality there is

      25       benefit to the customers of that 200.  What the dispatch
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       1       model will show and Witness Enjamio can describe more

       2       fully is that on a daily basis that incremental 200 has

       3       a lower variable cost than our existing capacity on FGT.

       4                 So in reality that 200 does have benefit to

       5       the customer because it will be dispatched.  So we will

       6       be using the full 600 and we will have excess 200 left

       7       on FGT at a higher variable cost.

       8            Q.   But that's in Mr. Enjamio's testimony,

       9       correct?

      10            A.   Well, he can further explain what that cost

      11       is, but that is how the model showed how the dispatch

      12       would work with the various pipelines.

      13            Q.   That's not your model, correct?

      14            A.   No, Mr. Enjamio does the modeling for FPL.

      15                 MR. SELF:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, I have no

      16       further questions.  Thank you.

      17                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Mr. Self.  Staff.

      18                 MS. BROWN:  We have no questions.

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Skop, you're

      20       recognized.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

      22                 Good afternoon, Ms. Stubblefield.

      23                 THE WITNESS:  Good afternoon.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I just wanted to draw your

      25       attention to Page 3 of your prefiled testimony where it
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       1       discusses the various options that were contained in the

       2       solicitation letter that was issued on July 17, 2008.

       3       And I guess the third alternative on Lines 18 through

       4       20 provides for a solicitation providing a segment from

       5       FGT Station 16 to the respective modernization plants,

       6       is that correct?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Correct.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Now, also beginning

       9       on Lines 21 through 22 it also stated in the

      10       solicitation letter that respondents were informed of

      11       FPL's intention to develop an interstate pipeline as an

      12       alternative third-party proposal.  Is that also correct?

      13                 THE WITNESS:  That is correct.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  I guess the

      15       question I have is in the need determination for the

      16       modernization plants, and I guess your prefiled

      17       testimony was filed on April 30th, 2008, at that time

      18       was FPL contemplating an intrastate pipeline?

      19                 THE WITNESS:  No, we were not contemplating it

      20       at that time, as far as I can recall.  Although I

      21       believe it was in my testimony that we were trying to

      22       introduce new infrastructure into the state.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Right.  And you mentioned

      24       on Page 3 of that testimony alternatives could include

      25       the addition of a new interstate pipeline.
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  Right.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  But, again, what somewhat

       3       caught me by surprise was trying to ascertain where the

       4       intrastate pipeline idea originated from in the temporal

       5       time frame under which the prior need determination and

       6       the current proceeding before us.  So, again, I just

       7       wanted to clarify that point that apparently this

       8       happened after your testimony was filed and concurrent

       9       with the Commission's determination of need for those

      10       two modernization projects, is that your understanding?

      11                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

      13                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Commissioner

      14       Skop.

      15                 Commissioners, anything further from the

      16       bench?

      17                 Redirect.

      18                 MR. PERKO:  No redirect.

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Exhibits.

      20                 MR. PERKO:  Excuse me, Commissioner.

      21                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  It would be 34 through 36.

      22                 MR. PERKO:  That is correct.

      23                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  And you are moving

      24       them into evidence.  Any objections?

      25                 MR. SELF:  No objections.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it

       2       done.

       3                 (Exhibit Number 34, 35, and 36 admitted into

       4       the record.)

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners, we have

       6       entered in Exhibits 34, 35, and 36.  Thank you.

       7                 Now, do we have a recess or is she coming

       8       back?  For the witness, do I put her on recess?

       9                 THE WITNESS:  I have no rebuttal testimony.

      10                 MR. PERKO:  She does not have rebuttal.

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Well, you got a

      12       get-out-of-jail-free card, then.

      13                 THE WITNESS:  I do.  Thank you.

      14                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Have a great day.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      16                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Call your next witness.

      17                 MR. PERKO:  FPL calls Juan Enjamio.

      18                 MR. PERKO:  Mr. Chairman, I do not believe

      19       that Mr. Enjamio was sworn.

      20                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Have you been sworn in?

      21                 THE WITNESS:  No, I have not.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Would you please raise your

      23       right hand.

      24                 (Witness sworn.)

      25                             JUAN ENJAMIO
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       1       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power and

       2       Light, and having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

       3                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

       4       BY MR. PERKO:

       5            Q.   Could you please state your full name and

       6       business address for the record?

       7            A.   Yes.  My name is Juan Enjamio.  My business

       8       address is 9250 West Flagler Street, Miami, Florida

       9       33174.

      10            Q.   Did you prepare and have submitted in this

      11       docket direct testimony consisting of 24 pages?

      12            A.   Yes, I did.

      13            Q.   Have you filed an errata pertaining to your

      14       testimony on July 24th?

      15            A.   Yes, I did.

      16            Q.   Other than the changes indicated in your

      17       errata, do you have any changes to your testimony?

      18            A.   No, I do not.

      19            Q.   And did you also attach exhibits to your

      20       testimony?

      21            A.   Yes, I did.

      22            Q.   Does your errata include any changes to those

      23       exhibits?

      24            A.   No.

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  With that, Your Honor -- or,
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       1       Mr. Chairman, I would ask that -- I'm sorry, one more

       2       question.

       3       BY MR. PERKO:

       4            Q.   Mr. Enjamio, if I were to ask you the same

       5       questions in your testimony today, would your answers be

       6       the same?

       7            A.   Yes, they would.

       8                 MR. PERKO:  With that, Mr. Chairman, I would

       9       request that Mr. Enjamio's testimony be inserted into

      10       the record as though read.

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of

      12       the witness will be inserted into the record as though

      13       read.

      14                 And just for identification purposes,

      15       Commissioners, on the exhibit list for this witness is

      16       37 through 45 for identification purposes.  Is that

      17       correct, staff?

      18                 MS. BROWN:  (Indicating affirmatively.)

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Commissioner

      20       Skop.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  Just on that

      22       errata, I just wanted to ask FPL's counsel perhaps they

      23       could ask the witness on Page 23 of the prefiled

      24       testimony reference is made to Witness Sexton's proposed

      25       cumulative present value revenue requirement and the
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       1       savings that would occur by using the pipeline over

       2       other alternatives.  And I'm contrasting that to

       3       different numbers in the rebuttal of Timothy Sexton on

       4       Page 7, Lines 6 through 7.  It seems to be -- and I

       5       don't know if it's an apple-to-apple comparison, but I

       6       just wanted to make sure I'm looking at the right

       7       numbers.

       8                 If it helps, I think that Mr. Sexton's revised

       9       numbers were on the updated gas cost savings analysis,

      10       and maybe those were not adopted in the direct testimony

      11       here.  So I just wanted to kind of clarify which those

      12       two numbers are right, if they are apple-to-apple

      13       numbers.

      14                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler.

      15                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm afraid you have stumped me

      16       for the moment.  I'm going to have to check into it.

      17       Can I confirm that for you during the next break?

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  That's fine.  Thank you.

      19                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

      20                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler, you are supposed

      21       stump the band, not stump the lawyer.

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  Every so afternoon it happens.

      23       Sorry.

      24                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Do you want to take a

      25       moment or can we proceed?  We will proceed and you can
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       1       do that on a break.  You may proceed, Mr. Perko.
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       1       BY MR. PERKO:

       2            Q.   Mr. Enjamio, could you please provide your

       3       summary of your testimony.

       4            A.   Yes, I will.  Good afternoon, Chairman Carter

       5       and Commissioners.  Based on FPL's current load

       6       forecasts and consistent with its long-term resource

       7       plan, which includes future generation resources

       8       previously approved by the Commission, FPL projects that

       9       it will need as much as 19,661 megawatts of new capacity

      10       between 2013 and 2040.  Of this total capacity, 17,357

      11       megawatts is expected to be incremental gas-fired

      12       capacity.  This need already accounts for the addition

      13       of 1,211 megawatts of new demand-side management

      14       programs projected between 2009 and 2018 and FPL's

      15       proposed nuclear units at Turkey Point.

      16                 In 2008, approximately 53 percent of all

      17       energy produced by FPL came from gas-fired generating

      18       units.  This percentage will increase to 68 percent by

      19       2030 and 84 percent by 2040.  Between 2013 and 2040, FPL

      20       will need to add about 2.7 billion cubic feet per day of

      21       gas transportation capacity.

      22                 As described in the testimony of FPL Witness

      23       Forest, the existing gas infrastructure in Florida is

      24       inadequate to meet FPL's firm gas transportation needs.

      25       As a result, FPL conducted a solicitation process for
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       1       gas transportation capacity for FPL's initial gas

       2       requirements as well as to develop its own self-built

       3       project, the Florida EnergySecure Line Company E

       4       Upstream Pipeline Project, which I will refer to as the

       5       EnergySecure Line.

       6                 From the solicitation process, the best FPL

       7       alternative was selected, which was the FGT proposal.

       8       The solicitation process is described in the testimony

       9       of FPL Witness Stubblefield.

      10                 The focus of my testimony is the economic

      11       analysis performed to compare both alternatives, the FGT

      12       and the Florida EnergySecure Line under the base case

      13       and two alternate scenarios.  The economic analysis

      14       consists of a lifecycle cost analysis that determines

      15       for the difference in cumulative present value of

      16       revenue requirements between the two firm gas

      17       transportation alternatives for each (phonetic) of three

      18       resource plans.

      19                 The proposal with lowest cumulative present

      20       value of revenue requirements over the life of the

      21       project will result in the lowest total cost impact to

      22       FPL's customers.  The analysis shows that selecting the

      23       Florida EnergySecure Line results in an economic

      24       advantage ranging between 204 million and $513 million

      25       cumulative in present value of revenue requirements when
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       1       compared to the FGT proposal.  This economic advantage

       2       does not include any additional benefit to FPL's

       3       customers from short-term off-system sales of gas

       4       transportation capacity.  FPL Witness Sexton explains

       5       how the sales made possible by the Florida EnergySecure

       6       Line could provide additional benefits to our customers

       7       ranging from approximately 200 million to as high as

       8       approximately 700 million.

       9                 I conclude that based on the projected gas

      10       transportation needs and favorable economics, that the

      11       Florida EnergySecure Line project is the best

      12       alternative for FPL's customers.

      13                 MR. PERKO:  We tender the witness for

      14       cross-examination.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Mr. Self.

      16                 MR. SELF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      17                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      18       BY MR. SELF:

      19            Q.   Mr. Enjamio, I'm Floyd Self representing FGT.

      20       It's nice to see you in person this time.

      21            A.   Same here.

      22            Q.   In your summary you reference the

      23       19,661 megawatts of new generating capacity that you are

      24       anticipating between 2013 and 2040, correct?

      25            A.   Yes.
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       1            Q.   And I believe I heard you say and your

       2       testimony reflects that of that 19,661 megawatts,

       3       17,357 megawatts will be gas-fired.  Is that correct?

       4            A.   That's correct.

       5            Q.   Would it be reasonable for FPL to construct

       6       this 19,661 megawatts of new generating capacity today

       7       so that it will be available for the next 30 years when

       8       you need it?

       9            A.   No, sir.  When we add a new generating

      10       resource or any kind of a large capital expenditure, we

      11       basically do a cumulative present value revenue

      12       requirement analysis of that particular project over its

      13       projected life.  It turns out to be often that you build

      14       a project for an amount larger than is actually required

      15       to serve the capacity at the immediate time knowing that

      16       at some point in time you will grow into the size of the

      17       project.  But clearly FPL is not coming in front of you

      18       to ask for a need to petition for 17,357 megawatts of

      19       generation today, no.

      20            Q.   And, in fact, the next gas-fired generating

      21       plant, according to your forecast, would come in service

      22       in -- I believe it's 2021, correct?

      23            A.   That is partly correct, Commissioners.  Under

      24       what I call my base resource plan, the first unit,

      25       gas-fired unit to come into service after the
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       1       reorganizations of Cape Canaveral and Riviera happens in

       2       2021.  I do have another scenario which I have called

       3       the four-year nuclear delay scenario which assumes that

       4       in case we have licensing difficulties or other things

       5       that could delay the in-service date of the units we

       6       would be requiring, in essence, two large combined

       7       cycles units in 2018 and 2020.

       8            Q.   At this time, do you believe that any of the

       9       circumstances that might lead to your nuclear delay

      10       scenario will, in fact, occur?

      11            A.   No, I cannot say it will, in fact, occur.  But

      12       there is a significant risk of delays.  The nuclear

      13       licensing process is early in its development.  There

      14       are a lot of issues that come up.  FPL is still trying

      15       to do its best to bring those units in 2018 and 2020,

      16       but FPL also recognizes a significant risk to that

      17       schedule.  So we think it's prudent to at least consider

      18       an alternative in case those nuclear units are delayed,

      19       and the fact that we build the Florida EnergySecure Line

      20       with 600 million cubic feet of capacity with very easy

      21       ability to expand would allow us to, in essence, if we

      22       find out two or three years down the road that the

      23       nuclear units are delayed, would allow us to, in

      24       essence, to bring gas -- have the gas capacity available

      25       to meet the generation units of those needs of those
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       1       units coming in in 2018 and 2020.

       2            Q.   But under either of those scenarios, whichever

       3       proves true, the gas generating electric plant that you

       4       are talking about under either scenario, neither of

       5       those gas plants are currently authorized, correct?

       6            A.   No.  We have not asked the Commission for

       7       permission to build any of those units, no.

       8            Q.   Okay.  Now, in general, your load forecasts

       9       are based upon the population and other forecasts that

      10       are prepared by Doctor Morley, correct?

      11            A.   That is correct.

      12            Q.   And so if Doctor Morley's forecasts are

      13       overstated, then your generation forecasts may be

      14       overstated depending upon the magnitude of the

      15       overstatement of Doctor Morley's analysis, is that

      16       correct?

      17            A.   That is correct, Mr. Self.  It would be -- if

      18       the load forecast is overstated, the generation plan

      19       might be somewhat overstated.  Similarly, if the load

      20       forecast is understated, which based on the history of

      21       long-term load forecasting is a more likely possibility

      22       as Doctor Morley said, then our gas needs would be

      23       understated and our generation requirements would be

      24       understated.

      25            Q.   Okay.  I would now like to discuss with you
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       1       your Exhibit JEE-7, which I believe has been identified

       2       at this point as Hearing Exhibit 43.  I just want to ask

       3       you some questions about that document and your

       4       analysis.

       5                 Now, as I understand the way that you

       6       conducted your analysis for what is presented in this

       7       exhibit, you depreciated the FPL pipeline over 40 years,

       8       is that correct?

       9            A.   That is correct.  We depreciated the FPL

      10       EnergySecure Line over 40 years, which is the expected

      11       useful life of the project.

      12            Q.   And for purposes of your analysis which is

      13       reflected on JEE-8, which has been identified as Hearing

      14       Exhibit 44, you assumed instantaneous adjustments to

      15       electric rates each year, is that correct?

      16            A.   I assumed that the EnergySecure Line would be

      17       placed in rate base in 2014.

      18            Q.   And for purposes of the analysis in JEE-8, you

      19       assumed instantaneous adjustments to electric rates,

      20       correct?

      21            A.   No, I would not say that, Commissioners.  The

      22       rate impact calculation shown in Exhibit JEE-8 are, in

      23       essence, done for purposes of comparing the relative

      24       impact of the two alternatives.  So, in a sense, we do

      25       assume that we do instantaneous ratemaking, but it's
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       1       just a convenience of comparing the impact of both

       2       alternatives.

       3            Q.   And, in fact, that is what Footnote 1 says

       4       about the instantaneous rate adjustments, correct?

       5            A.   That's right.

       6            Q.   Now, in actuality, the only way that you could

       7       flow through such rate reductions each year would be if

       8       you had a rate case, assuming this asset was in the rate

       9       base?

      10            A.   I think the proper way to look at this is that

      11       we are including -- we are requesting to include the

      12       revenue requirements of this project once it's placed

      13       into service to electric rate base, and we will have

      14       whatever the standard treatment for electric rate base

      15       is; at that time rates will be set, okay.  For purposes

      16       of this comparison we have assumed that the rates, the

      17       reality impact on the customer changes from year to

      18       year, but we are not assuming that we are going to have

      19       a rate case.  But this is a standard process and

      20       analysis that we always use in these type of projects.

      21       We look at the annual revenue requirement and,

      22       therefore, presume that rate impact on the customers.

      23            Q.   But, in fact, you could not reflect these

      24       lower costs to customers each year unless you had a rate

      25       case, correct?
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       1            A.   That I don't know, Mr. Self.  I'm not a rate

       2       expert, so I do not know how that would work.

       3            Q.   Okay.  Now, in your analysis of the FGT

       4       proposal that you are comparing here in your JEE-7 and

       5       JEE-8, you used the rate proposal provided by FGT to FPL

       6       in January of 2009, is that correct?

       7            A.   For purposes of the direct testimony, I

       8       used -- I believe that's the correct date.  I cannot say

       9       with certainty.  Ms. Stubblefield could tell us what the

      10       actual date was.

      11            Q.   Well, but in terms of the information that you

      12       used, you used the FGT January 2009 rate proposal,

      13       correct?

      14            A.   I am assuming that is the correct date,

      15       subject to check.

      16            Q.   Now, in performing your analysis of the FGT

      17       rate to compare against the FPL rate, you assumed a flat

      18       fixed rate for FGT over 40 years, correct?

      19            A.   That is correct.

      20            Q.   Okay.  And if we can look at your Exhibit

      21       JEE-8, Page 1 of 3.  This is your base case analysis, is

      22       that correct?

      23            A.   Yes.

      24            Q.   All right.  And it begins in year 2014, is

      25       that correct?
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       1            A.   Yes, it is.

       2            Q.   And in columns that are labeled as 1 and 2,

       3       beginning in 2014 in the first row there, the FGT, which

       4       is actually Company B, for 2014 the FGT is cheaper than

       5       the FPL, is that correct?

       6            A.   That is correct.  If we do not assume all the

       7       additional benefits of third-party sales and other

       8       benefits that other FPL witnesses have discussed, the

       9       FPL customer will see an increase in rates from 2014 to

      10       basically 2021.  Starting in 2022, the FPL customer will

      11       see a benefit in rates with the FPL project.  Over the

      12       life of the project and use in the standard analysis

      13       that we have used in this case, which is the same type

      14       of economic analysis we use in all of our generation

      15       resource needs proceedings that would come in front of

      16       the Commission, the cumulative present value of revenue

      17       requirement analysis, we show that over the life of the

      18       project the FPL EnergySecure Line will result in lower

      19       costs to FPL's customers.

      20            Q.   All right.  But that lower rate that you

      21       mentioned that would kick in in I believe it's 2022,

      22       again, that would occur only if you actually had a rate

      23       case in order to flow that rate through?

      24            A.   No, sir.  I have explained that I'm not a rate

      25       expert, but this shows a relative impact of the rates,
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       1       both rates.  But I do not know how these rates would be

       2       adjusted, and if it would require a rate case.

       3            Q.   All right.  But the cumulative impact of the

       4       FPL rates versus the FGT rates through 2022, on a

       5       cumulative basis at that point the FGT proposal is still

       6       cheaper than the FPL proposal, correct?

       7            A.   Yes, but that is not a proper economic

       8       analysis, or any kind of proper economic comparison of

       9       the two proposals.  For any type of large capital

      10       project, Commissioners, the standard that has been used

      11       in front of this Commission for many years is to look at

      12       the economics of the project over its useful life.  And,

      13       in fact, when we comparing different projects with

      14       different useful lives, the standard is to use the

      15       useful life of the project with the longer life, which

      16       is the approach we have shown here.  And as we used in

      17       many other proceedings and most recently in the nuclear

      18       need filing, we used the same proposal.  We looked at

      19       the cumulative present value of revenue requirements

      20       over the life of the project.  In the early years -- for

      21       the nuclear case, in the early years the FPL customers

      22       are worse off, but over time the FPL customers over the

      23       long-term become better off.

      24                 And, also, if I may remind you, Commissioners,

      25       this does not include a lot of the benefits that have
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       1       been discussed by FPL customers -- by other FPL's

       2       witnesses, excuse me.  We do not include the third-party

       3       sales which will offset the rate impact in the early

       4       years.  It does not include, for example, FPL enters

       5       into short-term or interruptible transportation

       6       purchases to supplement its firm gas transportation

       7       costs.

       8                 Just between April and today, FPL spent over

       9       $2.8 million in short-term or interruptible gas that

      10       would be avoided by having this pipeline which have not

      11       been included in the economics.  So the economics that I

      12       am showing here, which do show that FPL customers would

      13       pay more between 2014 and 2020, or 2021, but will be

      14       better off over time are conservative in that they do

      15       not include all these other benefits that have been

      16       discussed by others.

      17            Q.   Are you finished?

      18            A.   Yes, I am.

      19            Q.   Under your base case analysis, in what year

      20       does the cumulative analysis indicate that FPL's

      21       pipeline becomes more cost-effective over the FGT

      22       pipeline?

      23            A.   Under my base case analysis, as we said

      24       before, the FPL customer starts seeing a lower rate

      25       impact in 2022, what we call the crossover point, which
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       1       is the point at which the cumulative present value of

       2       revenue requirements shows that the customer over the

       3       period of the analysis is better off is 2041,

       4       approximately 27 years after the in-service date.

       5       Which, once again, is a fairly normal occurrence in

       6       projects of this type, on large capital projects.

       7       Certainly the case in the nuclear units filing.

       8            Q.   So for 27 years, 2041?

       9            A.   But, once again, that does not include --

      10       excuse me, yes, but that does not include all the other

      11       benefits.  If I include, for example, just the

      12       third-party sales that FPL Witness Sexton has discussed

      13       in his testimony, this crossover will be much shorter.

      14       But in this particular case the crossover is in 2041.

      15       In the same analysis shown in my direct testimony under

      16       the nuclear delay scenario, the crossover would happen

      17       in 2031.

      18            Q.   Are third-party sales a formal part of FPL's

      19       application in this case?

      20            A.   I'm not sure if you could call them formal or

      21       not.  FPL recognizes there will be a benefit from

      22       third-party sales.  I have not included those in my

      23       analysis that is shown in my direct testimony, but we do

      24       believe those sales will occur.  And they are quite

      25       sizable, as I discuss in my testimony, somewhere between
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       1       200 and $700 million.

       2                 And if I may, Commissioner Skop, I think I may

       3       clarify the discrepancy in the numbers, if I may, for a

       4       second.  I think it is an issue of present value of

       5       revenue requirements.  I believe Mr. Sexton's present

       6       value are for a different year than I did, but I will

       7       confirm that.

       8                 MR. SELF:  I'm finished.  Thank you.

       9                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

      10                 Are there questions from staff?

      11                 MS. BROWN:  Thank you, Commissioner.

      12                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      13       BY MS. BROWN:

      14            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Enjamio.  We are passing

      15       out two exhibits that are already in the record.  One is

      16       Exhibit 1 to your deposition, and the other is the

      17       late-filed exhibit to your deposition that we asked for.

      18       I think you're familiar with both of those.

      19            A.   Yes, I am.

      20            Q.   First, though, to Exhibit JEE-7.  That

      21       summarizes the results of your economic evaluation of

      22       the pipeline compared to FGT's first proposal, correct?

      23            A.   Yes.

      24            Q.   And that summary shows that under the nuclear

      25       delay scenario, the EnergySecure Line would realize
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       1       savings of approximately $500 million, correct?

       2            A.   Yes.

       3            Q.   And that summary also shows that under the

       4       base case scenario, the EnergySecure Line would realize

       5       savings of approximately $200 million, correct?

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   So under the nuclear delay scenario,

       8       approximately 300 million of additional savings are

       9       realized when compared to the base case, correct?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   Could you explain why this is the case?

      12            A.   Yes, I will.  Under the FPL EnergySecure Line

      13       proposal as has been discussed before, even though FPL

      14       has a firm need for 400 million cubic feet, the pipeline

      15       has a capacity of 600 million cubic feet.  Under the

      16       nuclear delay scenario, when we accelerate the need for

      17       new gas capacity to replace the nuclear units, in

      18       essence we have 200 million cubic feet that have already

      19       been paid made for in the original analysis.  So those

      20       200 million cubic feet are largely free of cost for the

      21       FPL EnergySecure Line portion of the analysis.

      22                 That is not the case for the FGT analysis.

      23       For the FGT proposal then we would have to accelerate or

      24       include additional transportation costs in those years.

      25       So I believe that is the main component of the
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       1       differential, the increase between the two scenarios.

       2            Q.   So to be clear, accelerating the need for gas

       3       generation capacity is the primary driver behind the

       4       additional 300 million of savings realized under the

       5       nuclear delay scenario, correct?

       6            A.   I could agree with that, yes.

       7            Q.   Now, if you will refer to your Deposition

       8       Exhibit 1.  Does it accurately reflect the difference

       9       between the revenue requirements for the EnergySecure

      10       Line and FGT's proposal as given to staff in FPL's

      11       response to Staff Interrogatory Number 24?

      12            A.   Yes, it does.  Commissioners, what this

      13       exhibit represents is the economics using a load

      14       forecast since it was requested by staff, which reduce

      15       the load forecast.  FPL still believes that the load

      16       forecast that is used in my analysis and presented by

      17       Doctor Morley is the right forecast to use for this

      18       purpose, but we conducted -- at the request of staff, we

      19       conducted this analysis which shows that under the base

      20       case, FPL's proposal was $7 million less economic than

      21       the FGT proposal, and $101 million more economic than

      22       the FGT proposal under the nuclear delay scenario.

      23                 A couple of observations I would like to make.

      24       One is that, once again, these numbers do not include

      25       the benefits of any third-party sales or any other
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       1       benefit that was described.

       2            Q.   Mr. Enjamio, I think you're looking at the

       3       wrong exhibit.

       4            A.   I'm looking at Page 2 of 10.

       5            Q.   You should be looking at the exhibits that we

       6       just passed out to you, and the one I want you to look

       7       at is present value revenue requirements, Deposition

       8       Exhibit 1.

       9            A.   Oh, I'm sorry, I'm looking at the wrong one.

      10            Q.   That's all right.  We'll get to the other one.

      11       My question was does it appear to accurately represent

      12       the difference between the revenue requirements for the

      13       EnergySecure Line and FGT's proposal as given to staff

      14       in FPL's response to Staff Interrogatory Number 24?

      15            A.   Yes, it does.

      16            Q.   Okay.  And the values in Interrogatory Number

      17       24 are the values that were used to populate Exhibit

      18       JEE-7, is that correct?

      19            A.   That's correct.

      20            Q.   Okay.  If you would focus on the line titled

      21       nuclear delay.  It's the line with the triangle.  In

      22       what year does the EnergySecure Line become

      23       cost-effective on a cumulative basis?

      24            A.   In approximately 2030.

      25            Q.   Now, please focus on the line titled base
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       1       case.  I think you mentioned this before, but just to

       2       clarify, in what year does the EnergySecure Line become

       3       cost effective on a cumulative basis?

       4            A.   First, Ms. Brown, may correct my previous

       5       answer?  In crosses in 2031 for the nuclear delay

       6       scenario.  For the second line, the base case, it

       7       crosses over in 2041.

       8            Q.   And is the 11-year difference also

       9       attributable to the timing of the need for additional

      10       gas generation capacity?

      11            A.   Yes.  And the fact, as I mentioned before,

      12       that, in essence, we have a period where we can

      13       accelerate the amount of gas delivered on the

      14       EnergySecure Line with very little cost while under the

      15       FGT proposal it would require additional transportation

      16       charges.

      17            Q.   All right.  Now, if you would turn to

      18       Late-filed Exhibit Number 1, Page 2 of 10.

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Ms. Brown, could you hold on

      20       for a second?

      21                 MS. BROWN:  Sure.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Skop.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

      24                 Just a quick point of information from staff,

      25       because I'm a little confused.  I see the Late-filed

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    353

       1       Exhibit 1, Page 2 of 10, which I believe you are

       2       questioning the witness on.

       3                 MS. BROWN:  I'm just about to.

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  What is the second

       5       sheet?

       6                 MS. BROWN:  The second sheet is Deposition

       7       Exhibit 1 that we just finished questioning on.  When we

       8       took Mr. Enjamio's deposition we sent this exhibit to

       9       him and asked questions related to it.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  You may proceed.

      12       BY MS. BROWN:

      13            Q.   All right.  Late-filed Exhibit 1, Page 2 of

      14       10 is a summary of FPL's economic evaluation of the

      15       EnergySecure Line assuming a load forecast based on the

      16       University of Florida population forecast, is this

      17       correct?

      18            A.   Yes, it is.

      19            Q.   And that summary shows that under the base

      20       case scenario, the EnergySecure Line would actually cost

      21       the ratepayer $7 million, correct?

      22            A.   Yes, that is correct, although as I was

      23       mentioning in my premature answer before, this number

      24       does not include the additional benefits that we

      25       discussed about like benefits of sales to third party
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       1       and avoidance of interruptible charges for gas

       2       transportation charges.

       3            Q.   All right.  Can you explain why the University

       4       of Florida's population projection causes a more than

       5       $200 million reduction in savings?

       6            A.   It's, in essence, similar or a reverse of what

       7       happens when you accelerated the units.  It takes

       8       longer, there is a longer time, in essence, where the

       9       FPL EnergySecure Line is not fully utilized.

      10            Q.   So would it be accurate to say that the

      11       cost-effectiveness of the EnergySecure Line, assuming no

      12       revenue from sales, is greatly dependent on the timing

      13       of future gas transportation capacity needs?

      14            A.   Yes.  The economics of the EnergySecure Line

      15       are dependent on the timing, but if I may point out,

      16       Commissioners, we are looking here at what I will call a

      17       load forecast sensitivity, a low load forecast

      18       sensitivity.  The reverse happens if we were to do a

      19       high band forecast sensitivity.  The economics of the

      20       line would be greatly enhanced if we had a higher load

      21       forecast, and the evidence shows that Doctor Morley

      22       presented that the chances of overforecasting are lower

      23       than the chances of underforecasting.

      24                 An example, I think, was mentioned before I

      25       believe on Doctor Morley's testimony earlier today.  We
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       1       experienced a peak load earlier this summer of 22,200

       2       megawatts approximately.  Under this load forecast we

       3       would not see that level of load under 2014.

       4                 Now, granted that's part of the reason for the

       5       very high load forecast.  The high actual load this year

       6       was extreme weather, but nevertheless, Mr. Forest's

       7       organization has to actually operate the system.  He has

       8       to, in essence, have sufficient gas supplies to operate

       9       the system under the higher load forecast.

      10                 The point I'm trying to make is there a much

      11       greater risk to FPL's customers of underforecasting than

      12       overforecasting.  And I'll just add one last point.

      13       Even under this scenario, which is a negative $7 million

      14       in the base case, 101 million positive in the nuclear

      15       delay scenario for the FPL pipeline, on the average $22

      16       million to a positive of the FPL EnergySecure Line.

      17       But, even if we take -- let's say we would take the base

      18       case results with a negative 7 million, which I would

      19       assume you would agree with me that is close to

      20       break-even, in essence, the FPL customer is getting a

      21       third pipeline into a state at no cost.  So it's getting

      22       all the benefits of third-party lines, competition,

      23       supply diversity, all of that with basically no cost to

      24       them.  And, of course, we expect, once again, these

      25       numbers, the actual impact on the customer would be
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       1       better than this when we include all those other

       2       benefits.

       3                 MS. BROWN:  Mr. Chairman, I apologize, could

       4       we have five minutes?

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, you may.

       6                 MS. BROWN:  Thank you.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners, this is a

       8       good time for a stretch.  Let's come back at twenty-four

       9       after.

      10                 (Recess.)

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  We are back on the record.

      12       And when we last left, Staff, you had the ball.

      13                 MS. BROWN:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      14                 Just a few more questions, Mr. Enjamio.

      15       BY MS. BROWN:

      16            Q.   You talked earlier several times about the

      17       benefits of third-party sales of capacity off the

      18       EnergySecure Line.  Would you explain for us what you

      19       mean by third-party sales?

      20            A.   Yes.

      21                 Commissioners, what I mean by third-party

      22       sales is what has been referred to by others as capacity

      23       release on either FGT or Gulfstream pipelines.  As has

      24       been discussed before, when the FPL pipeline goes into

      25       service, it will have a capacity of 600 million cubic
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       1       feet, while FPL has a firm demand of 400 million cubic

       2       feet only.

       3                 Now, FPL will fully utilize the

       4       600 million cubic feet capacity in the FPL EnergySecure

       5       Line because it, is essence, a more cost-effective way

       6       of moving gas.  But that may free up at times that

       7       ability to free up capacity from our existing contracts

       8       with Gulfstream and with FGT, so that's, in essence, my

       9       definition of third-party sales.

      10            Q.   If FPL uses all 600 MCF on the EnergySecure

      11       pipeline and releases its excess capacity held on FGT or

      12       Gulfstream, will FPL recoup 100 percent of the cost it

      13       paid for the capacity on FGT or Gulfstream?

      14            A.   No, it's my understanding that FPL would not

      15       necessarily recover the full cost.

      16            Q.   All right.  Thank you.  The next questions

      17       have to do with the handout.  We handed out to you

      18       Interrogatory Number 132 and 134.  Do you see that

      19       there?  I think 133 is in the middle of it, but we're

      20       not concerned with that one, and they have to do with

      21       demand-side management savings.  Would you agree that

      22       your response to FPL's Response to Interrogatory 132

      23       shows FPL's DSM savings assumed in this docket?

      24            A.   Yes.

      25            Q.   And would you agree that FPL's Response to
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       1       Interrogatory 134 illustrates FPL's achievable DSM

       2       savings in Docket Number 080407, the current DSM goals

       3       setting docket?

       4            A.   Yes, it does.

       5            Q.   Would you also agree that in every year FPL's

       6       projected summer peak reduction and annual energy

       7       reduction in this docket are greater than the achievable

       8       assumed in the current DSM goals setting document?

       9            A.   Yes, I would.  And the reason for that,

      10       Commissioners, is that when I started this analysis

      11       earlier this year, FPL had not conducted or started

      12       its -- well, I think it had already started, but it was

      13       definitely not anywhere close to completing its economic

      14       analysis of DSM.  So the numbers that are used in my

      15       analysis do not reflect the current assumptions for the

      16       economic cost-effectiveness of DSM, which those current

      17       assumptions are the ones that are included in the

      18       response to 134.

      19                 MS. BROWN:  All right.  Thank you, Mr.

      20       Enjamio.

      21                 We have no further questions.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, staff.

      23                 Commissioner Skop, you're recognized.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

      25                 Just a few quick questions.  If I could draw
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       1       your attention to Exhibit JEE-8, please.

       2                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  With respect to years 2014

       4       and beyond, does the total, or annual total revenue

       5       requirement in years 2014 and beyond include the revenue

       6       requirement for both the Riviera conversion project as

       7       well as the Canaveral conversion project?

       8                 THE WITNESS:  If you're asking, Commissioner

       9       Skop, does that include the revenue requirements of the

      10       actual, the two projects, the generation projects, no,

      11       it does not.  And the reason we did not include it is

      12       that the number would, in essence, be the same for both

      13       alternatives.  So in terms of the comparative analysis,

      14       it would not add any value.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  I guess what I was

      16       trying to ascertain was -- I'm looking at the far right

      17       column, which is the differential in customer bill for a

      18       comparative 1000 kilowatt hours, and I understand that

      19       this is a differential analysis between the FPL option

      20       and the Company B's requirement in showing the

      21       difference in terms of bill impact.  And at least for

      22       the average consumer in 2014, the average consumer would

      23       see a potential bill impact, if I understand this chart

      24       correctly, of probably about $2, or 2.50, $3 per month

      25       on a stand-alone basis and then declining further on.
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       1                 But what I was trying to do is find an all-in

       2       rate impact.  Again, we are in the pendency of a current

       3       rate case, but in 2013/2014 you've got about

       4       $4.1 billion of capital projects coming into the rate

       5       base, potentially, and I'm trying to understand ahead of

       6       the curve what the potential bill impact might to be the

       7       average consumer.

       8                 THE WITNESS:  I understand what you are

       9       looking for, Commissioner Skop, but unfortunately that

      10       is not included.  I don't think you can derive that from

      11       my testimony.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Is there a way to

      13       perhaps get that as a late-filed exhibit?

      14                 MS. BROWN:  Yes, Commissioner.  We could make

      15       it Late-filed Exhibit 96, is it?  97.  And perhaps you

      16       could describe it.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I knew they were going to

      18       do that to me.  Annual total revenue requirement -- or

      19       actually, excuse me, I'll just -- let me take another

      20       stab at this.  Economic analysis results projection of

      21       appropriate bill impacts, including the modernization

      22       projects.  Is that short enough?

      23                 MS. BROWN:  That's fine.

      24                 (Late-filed Exhibit 97 marked for

      25       identification.)
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       1                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  That was the short version?

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.

       3                 And just one point of clarification.  And I

       4       think I heard it correctly, but the base case does not

       5       include any revenue associated with off-system sales of

       6       excess capacity, is that correct?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  That is correct, Commissioner

       8       Skop.  It does not include third-party sales, revenues,

       9       or any other benefit.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  Thank

      11       you.

      12                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Anything further from the

      13       bench?

      14                 Redirect?

      15                 MR. PERKO:  Yes.  Thank you, Chairman.

      16                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      17       BY MR. PERKO:

      18            Q.   Mr. Enjamio, I've got a couple of questions in

      19       response to Mr. Self's questions.  I believe at one

      20       point you testified that for the FGT rate proposal your

      21       analysis assumed a fixed rate for the length of the

      22       analysis.  Is that correct?

      23            A.   Yes, it is correct.  We did use a flat rate

      24       for the FGT proposal through the length of the study.

      25       We assumed the same thing for the company proposal, so
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       1       both proposals were treated in the same way.

       2            Q.   Are you aware of any benefit that FPL

       3       customers have received as a result of depreciation of

       4       FGT assets?

       5            A.   I haven't performed any actual analysis.  But,

       6       Commissioners, I think the implication is that if FPL

       7       would have imputed a reduced rate due to depreciation at

       8       the end of the 25-year contract, that would improve the

       9       economics of the FGT proposal, and that is not

      10       necessarily the case.  If I may explain.  The Company

      11       proposal is a 20-year proposal, and it's also a proposal

      12       for 600 million cubic feet.  So if we were to apply

      13       depreciation or some reduced rate derived in some way, I

      14       would have to do the same thing for both the FGT

      15       proposal and also for the company proposal in FPL's

      16       option.

      17                 And given the fact that the FGT proposal --

      18       excuse me, the Company proposal is actually for a

      19       shorter term and is a larger amount, it is very likely

      20       that the comparative economics would actually improve if

      21       the depreciation or some kind of depreciation was

      22       imputed so that after the end of a 25-year contract the

      23       rates for both company -- I'm sorry, the FGT contract,

      24       the rate for FGT would reduce, and at the end of the

      25       20-year contract for the company its rate would also be
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       1       reduced.

       2            Q.   Mr. Enjamio, Ms. Brown asked you some

       3       questions regarding release of capacity off the Florida

       4       EnergySecure Line -- or, I'm sorry, release of capacity

       5       off of FGT and Gulfstream as a result of the Florida

       6       EnergySecure Line, and whether all of those costs could

       7       be fully recouped.  Do you recall that testimony?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   Was that taken into account in your analysis?

      10            A.   Yes, it was.  In fact, my analysis includes

      11       the full amount of FGT costs, or the full amount of the

      12       FGT transportation costs for the existing contracts.

      13            Q.   And to the extent that cost of released

      14       capacity is recovered, will that improve the economics

      15       of the Florida EnergySecure proposal?

      16            A.   It would improve the economics of the

      17       EnergySecure proposal and reduce the cost impact in the

      18       early years to FPL's customers.

      19            Q.   Now, Ms. Brown showed you an exhibit which is

      20       a series of interrogatory responses, I believe it's 132,

      21       33, and perhaps 34.  Yes, 34.  I just wanted to make it

      22       clear.  Is my understanding correct that in this docket

      23       you assumed more DSM savings than any other docket?

      24            A.   Yes.  In this docket I'm assuming a greater

      25       amount of DSM programs.  FPL has determined it's a
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       1       cost-effective amount if it's the DSM goals docket.

       2       What I'd like to point out, that in terms of this docket

       3       that, in essence, reduces the gas requirements to FPL,

       4       and if we were to reduce the amount of DSM in my

       5       analysis to what is shown in the DSM cost-effectiveness

       6       goals result, it would only benefit the FPL EnergySecure

       7       Line.

       8            Q.   Finally, Mr. Enjamio, I want to pass around

       9       Page 3 of the late-filed exhibit that Ms. Brown had

      10       passed around, and if you would take a look at that when

      11       you get it.

      12                 Have you had a chance to look at it?

      13            A.   Yes, I have.

      14            Q.   Could you explain what this exhibit does?

      15            A.   Yes.  This exhibit is, in essence, a

      16       compilation of the results of all the analysis that FPL

      17       has done in this docket, all the economic analysis,

      18       either at FPL's own initiative or at the initiative of

      19       the staff.  And basically shows a total of 36 different

      20       economic analysis with a range of different assumptions,

      21       including higher fuel forecasts, lower fuel forecasts,

      22       revised FGT proposals, and the three different resource

      23       centers that we discussed.  And basically what it says

      24       is of the 36 cases, 34 of those show a positive result

      25       to FPL with a net savings in cumulative present value of
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       1       revenue requirements of 352 million.  The two cases that

       2       are negative to FPL's proposal were the ones that were

       3       discussed -- I answered some questions of Ms. Brown,

       4       which basically were used in the low load forecast

       5       sensitivity, and those show that the base case will be

       6       minus $7 million.

       7                 I pointed out before that that case basically

       8       does not include any of the other benefits of

       9       third-party sales and other cost benefits.  So, in

      10       essence, in the very worst-case of all the analysis,

      11       what this shows is that FPL customers receive all the

      12       benefits of third-party pipeline at essence at no cost.

      13       But the main purpose of the analysis is to show the

      14       robustness of the analysis that was done.  So of 34

      15       cases, 36 were shown to be positive to FPL's customers.

      16            Q.   And, Mr. Enjamio, I believe you stated that in

      17       your analysis you did not account for the revenues

      18       associated with off-system sales, but if you were to do

      19       that, what impact would that have on those cases that

      20       were negative?

      21            A.   Well, in Mr. Sexton's low -- what I will call

      22       low case for third-party benefits, it is approximately

      23       $200 million present value, so they would definitely

      24       turn those cases to a strong positive for FPL's

      25       customers.
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       1                 MR. PERKO:  Nothing further, Mr. Chairman.

       2                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Skop.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

       4                 Just one further question.  I guess on the

       5       late-filed exhibit that was just passed out for the Line

       6       Item 31, which is the base case Interrogatory 183,

       7       JEE-7, with Henry Hub prices minus 10 percent.  I guess

       8       staff in the previous exhibit did a sensitivity analysis

       9       based on a load forecast which I think resulted in the

      10       base case of the negative cost differential.

      11                 I was wondering with respect to the fuel

      12       prices, and I don't know if you're the best witness to

      13       ask, perhaps it might be better reserved for Mr.

      14       Sexton's rebuttal, but has anyone checked the near-term

      15       fuel sensitivities in terms of what impact those might

      16       have?  I don't think really it is that critical to the

      17       majority of the analysis, but, again, Mr. Sexton's

      18       numbers get a little bit lower than most of the numbers

      19       presented here.  But it seems to me that the fuel

      20       forecast was based on November 2008, which was -- I

      21       guess Henry Hub prices back then were about 6.70 per

      22       MMBtu, and since then they have fallen to about $3.5,

      23       3.6.  So I was wondering in terms of term -- I know

      24       there was a near-term, a mid-term, and then a long-term

      25       that used an escalator factor based on the analysis, but
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       1       I was wondering if anyone has done any sensitivities as

       2       to that near-term selection of natural gas prices and

       3       how that would affect the cumulative present value

       4       revenue requirement.

       5            A.   The answer is no, we have not done any such

       6       sensitivity.  It is my assumption that if we did such a

       7       sensitivity as long as it only effects in the

       8       short-term, and we assume that the long-term trend is

       9       the same, then the answer would not change.  But that I

      10       think is a question that is best answered by either Mr.

      11       Sexton or actually I would refer to Mr. Sharra to answer

      12       that question.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Thank you.

      14                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Exhibits.

      15                 MR. PERKO:  FPL would move Exhibits 37 through

      16       45 into the record.

      17                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self.

      18                 MR. SELF:  No objection.

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it

      20       done.

      21                 (Exhibit Numbers 37 through 45 admitted into

      22       the record.)

      23                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners, Exhibits 37

      24       through 45.  Okay.  And I assume that we will see Mr.

      25       Enjamio -- did I get it right?
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  That's right.

       2                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  I can go home now.

       3                 We'll probably see him again in rebuttal.

       4                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  So you get a recess, sir.

       6       Thank you.  Call your next witness.

       7                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.  Mr. Chairman, I would

       8       call Mr. Guest to the stand.  And Mr. Guest has not been

       9       previously sworn.

      10                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  I'll let him get his

      11       water first.

      12                 Mr. Guest, will you please raise your right

      13       hand.

      14                 (Witness sworn.)

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Please be seated.

      16                            JAMES K. GUEST

      17       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power and

      18       Light Company, and testified as follows:

      19                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      20       BY MR. BUTLER:

      21            Q.   Mr. Guest, would you please state your name

      22       and business address for the record?

      23            A.   James K. Guest.  My business address is 1155

      24       15th Street Northwest, Washington, D.C. 20005, Suite

      25        400.
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       1            Q.   By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

       2            A.   I am an associate in the consulting firm of

       3       Brown, Williams, Moorhead, and Quinn.

       4            Q.   Have you prepared and caused to be filed 14

       5       pages of Prefiled Direct Testimony and four attached

       6       exhibits, JKG-1 through JKG-4, in this proceeding?

       7            A.   Yes, I have.

       8            Q.   Did you also cause to be filed an errata to

       9       your testimony on July 24, 2009?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   Do you have any further changes or revisions

      12       to your prefiled direct testimony beyond the errata that

      13       were filed?

      14            A.   No, I do not.

      15            Q.   With those changes reflected in the errata, if

      16       I asked you the same questions contained in your direct

      17       testimony, would your answers be the same?

      18            A.   Yes, they would.

      19                 MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman, I would ask that

      20       Mr. Guest's Direct Testimony, Prefiled Direct Testimony

      21       be inserted into the record as though read.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of

      23       the witness will be inserted into the record as though

      24       read.

      25
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       1                 MR. BUTLER:  And I would note that his

       2       Exhibits JKG-1 through JKG-4 have been identified in

       3       Staff's Comprehensive Exhibit List as Exhibits 46

       4       through 49.

       5
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       1       BY MR. BUTLER:

       2            Q.   And with that, Mr. Guest, would you please

       3       summarize your testimony.

       4            A.   Good morning -- or, good afternoon, Mr.

       5       Chairman and Commissioners.  Thank you for this

       6       opportunity to appear before you today.

       7                 My testimony focuses on the proper accounting

       8       for the costs associated with the proposed Florida

       9       EnergySecure Line and how that accounting is consistent

      10       with the appropriate rate treatment that should be

      11       afforded those costs.  Unlike most U.S. electric

      12       utilities, Florida Power and Light serves a large

      13       portion of its electric load through gas fuel

      14       generation.

      15                 For Florida Power and Light, transporting gas

      16       through its electric generating stations is a critical

      17       and integral part of its ability to provide reliable

      18       electric service.  To meet the gas transportation needs

      19       of its electric generating stations and for the benefit

      20       of its electric customers, Florida Power and Light has

      21       carefully and thoroughly gone about assessing those

      22       needs and developing a gas transportation proposal that

      23       will result in the lowest cost to its electric

      24       customers.  That proposal is the Florida EnergySecure

      25       Line.
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       1                 Because the Florida EnergySecure Line will be

       2       an asset used in Florida Power and Light's electric

       3       production function, the related costs of the pipeline

       4       should be classified as electric utility plant just as

       5       the cost of all other assets owned and used for that

       6       purpose are classified.  For the same reason, the

       7       depreciation, operation, and maintenance expenses

       8       related to the line after it has been placed in service

       9       should be charged to electric utility operating

      10       expenses.

      11                 Now, it's true that the addition of the

      12       Florida EnergySecure Line may result in Florida Power

      13       and Light temporarily holding excess gas transportation

      14       capacity.  But in large long-lived infrastructure

      15       projects such as this, excess capacity almost always

      16       exists initially in order to capture economies of scale.

      17       That does not mean that costs related to that excess

      18       capacity should be reclassified or allocated to

      19       different departments or functions.  Instead, the cost

      20       of the asset and its associated operating and

      21       maintenance expenses remain classified according to

      22       their primary function and any revenues from third-party

      23       sales of excess capacity are credited back to the costs

      24       of the primary function.

      25                 The practice of classifying an asset's costs
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       1       and related expenses based on its primary function with

       2       revenue crediting for its secondary use is accepted and

       3       appropriate for public utilities.  This is, in fact,

       4       what Florida Power and Light has proposed for its

       5       Florida EnergySecure Line.  This accounting is supported

       6       by the Uniform System of Accounts for public utilities

       7       and can be put in place very efficiently without the

       8       need to resort to complex cost allocations or reporting

       9       requirements that would be needed if Florida

      10       EnergySecure Line's assets were, for example, held in a

      11       separate subsidiary company.

      12                 Finally, classifying the costs of the Florida

      13       EnergySecure Line as electric utility plant is entirely

      14       consistent with the appropriate rate treatment that

      15       should be afforded these costs.  Electric utility plant

      16       costs and the related expenses typically are assigned

      17       and collected in rates charged to electric customers.

      18       Because the Florida EnergySecure Line project is being

      19       undertaken for the benefit of electric customers,

      20       classifying the costs as electric utility plant results

      21       in assigning the costs to the customers that receive the

      22       benefits, and also comports with Florida Power and

      23       Light's proposal to credit electric customers with the

      24       revenues received from any third-party sales of excess

      25       capacity.  Thank you.
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       1                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you, Mr. Guest.

       2                 I tender the witness for cross.

       3                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Self.

       4                 MR. SELF:  Thank you.

       5                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       6       BY MR. SELF:

       7            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Guest.  I'm Floyd Self

       8       representing FGT, and I've got a few questions for you.

       9       Have you ever previously advocated placing a 280-mile

      10       long mainline natural gas transmission pipeline in

      11       electric utility plant rate base before any regulatory

      12       commission?

      13            A.   I have not advocated that, no.  I do think

      14       this is probably a fairly unusual case.

      15            Q.   Well, pipelines have -- gas transportation

      16       pipelines have existed for many years, correct?

      17            A.   Yes.

      18            Q.   Can you turn to Page 9 of your testimony,

      19       please?

      20            A.   I'm there.

      21            Q.   Now, in support of your analysis, you discuss

      22       the Kelso Beaver Pipeline, a 17-mile pipeline that FERC

      23       allowed in an electric utility to classify as electric

      24       utility plant, is that correct?

      25            A.   That's correct.
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       1            Q.   Now, presumably this 17-mile pipeline tied

       2       into some other long distance mainline transportation

       3       system that actually brought the natural gas to the gas

       4       fields to the 17-mile line, is that true?

       5            A.   I believe so.

       6            Q.   Did the 17-mile long pipeline here serve one

       7       electric plant?

       8            A.   I believe the pipeline served a generating

       9       station as well as an LDC, I think.

      10            Q.   But it only served one electric plant as far

      11       as you knew?

      12            A.   As far as I'm aware, yes.

      13            Q.   In your mind is this 17-mile pipeline just

      14       like some of the short distance pipelines that FPL

      15       currently owns and operates?

      16            A.   It may be similar in diameter, but I don't

      17       think the particular length of the pipeline necessarily

      18       dictates what the proper accounting for the pipeline

      19       should be.  It's really -- classification for accounting

      20       purposes of the pipeline is based upon what it's going

      21       to be used for, which in the case of the Florida

      22       EnergySecure Line it will be used for the electric

      23       production function.

      24            Q.   Well, I understand that.  All I'm trying to

      25       get to is you would agree with me that FPL today owns
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       1       several short distance pipelines, is that true?

       2            A.   I am aware that they own the Martin pipeline.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And how long is that pipeline?

       4            A.   My understanding is it is 36 miles long.

       5            Q.   Okay.  Do you know whether that pipeline

       6       crosses county boundaries?

       7            A.   No, I do not.

       8            Q.   Can you identify for us any long distance,

       9       200 miles or more in length, high pressure natural gas

      10       transportation pipelines that serve multiple customers

      11       or multiple power plants and which are included in an

      12       electric utility's rate base?

      13            A.   In conducting some research for this case, it

      14       was difficult to determine whether, in fact, those types

      15       of facilities existed elsewhere in the United States,

      16       primarily because to my knowledge there is not

      17       necessarily a disclosure requirement for an entity that

      18       would own such a facility to disclose that facility in

      19       that kind of a description.  Given that, I was not able

      20       to identify a pipeline that was, as you put it, I

      21       believe, over 200 miles in length that was serving

      22       multiple generating stations.

      23            Q.   To your knowledge has the Florida Public

      24       Service Commission ever approved a pipeline project such

      25       as the one that's here for inclusion in electric rate
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       1       base?

       2            A.   I'm not aware that the Florida Public Service

       3       Commission has approved inclusion of a pipeline, if you

       4       are equating it to an over 200-mile pipeline, in rate

       5       base.  I am aware that the Florida Public Service

       6       Commission had permitted a return to be earned on a

       7       pipeline serving FPL's production function.

       8            Q.   And what do you mean by that?

       9            A.   It's my understanding that the pipeline that

      10       was serving Martin Station, the 36-mile pipeline, was

      11       allowed -- that the Florida Public Service Commission

      12       had authorized a return to be earned on that pipeline,

      13       although it was recovered through the fuel adjustment

      14       clause.

      15            Q.   In your experience, would you define that

      16       pipeline as a mainline transportation natural gas

      17       pipeline?

      18            A.   I would defer that question to Witness

      19       Collins, I think.  I think he earlier had described what

      20       was mainline and what wasn't mainline.

      21            Q.   Okay.  In your experience working before the

      22       FERC, have you ever seen the FERC approve a pipeline

      23       project such as FPL is proposing here for inclusion in

      24       an electric utility's rate base?

      25            A.   I don't know that the situation would have
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       1       been put squarely before the Commission in that fashion.

       2       The Commission regulates wholesale sales for electric

       3       energy, and if there was a pipeline that was included in

       4       the cost of the plant from which a wholesale rate was

       5       determined, I don't know that they would have

       6       specifically focused on whether those costs included a

       7       pipeline.

       8                 The one case that I'm aware of where the

       9       Commission -- well, the one case I'm aware of where it

      10       was considered what the proper accounting should be for

      11       a pipeline owned and used by an electric utility and

      12       serving a generating station was the Portland General

      13       case that I referred to in my testimony, and there they

      14       concluded it should be classified as electric plant.

      15            Q.   Let me ask you this question.  If FPL, say,

      16       had a coal-fired electric plant, and you would agree

      17       with me that obviously that plant requires coal in order

      18       to generate electricity, correct?

      19            A.   Yes.

      20            Q.   And if based upon where that plant was

      21       located, the best way to move coal to that plant was by

      22       barge, in your analysis would it be appropriate for the

      23       utility to purchase that barge transportation system to

      24       use it to transport coal to that power plant and include

      25       it in rate base?
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       1            A.   If the economics showed that that was the most

       2       cost-effective and efficient way of doing it and

       3       resulted in the lowest rates for the consumers, yes, it

       4       would be -- those barges would be being used in the

       5       electric production function and should be included in

       6       electric plant and service and rate base.

       7            Q.   I'm sorry, I didn't mean to cut you off.

       8            A.   I said and rate base.  I believe that was your

       9       question.

      10            Q.   Okay.  Now, let's say -- just to kind of

      11       follow this line -- let's say that the coal that is

      12       required to be burned in this power plant is a unique

      13       kind of coal that's only found in Tennessee, or

      14       Kentucky, it doesn't matter which state.

      15                 Would it be appropriate in your analysis for

      16       the utility to purchase that coal mine if the coal

      17       coming from that coal mine was only going to be

      18       transported on that barge and only used by the electric

      19       utility?

      20            A.   Your hypothetical was, I think, would it be

      21       appropriate for the utility to purchase that coal mine?

      22            Q.   And include it in the rate base.

      23            A.   And include it in the rate base if it was only

      24       going to transport on its own barges?

      25            Q.   And use it in only its electric generating
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       1       plant?

       2            A.   If economically that was the most efficient

       3       way of meeting what was needed in its electric utility

       4       production function, I don't see any reason why it would

       5       not be appropriate to classify it as electric utility

       6       plant.

       7                 MR. SELF:  Okay.  Thank you.  No further

       8       questions, Commissioner.

       9                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.  Are there

      10       questions from staff for this?

      11                 MS. BROWN:  Yes, Commissioners.  Could we have

      12       two minutes just to go over our questions because there

      13       has been some repetition?

      14                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  You may.  Should we hold

      15       in spot, hold in place?

      16                 MS. BROWN:  Sure.

      17                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  We are on an informal

      18       break for about two minutes.

      19                 MS. BROWN:  Thank you.

      20                 (Brief recess.)

      21                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      22       BY MS. BROWN:

      23            Q.   Good afternoon.  Is it Doctor Guest?

      24            A.   No, it's not.

      25            Q.   Mr. Guest, if I might direct your attention
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       1       back to Portland General for a minute.  In your

       2       testimony you use it as an example of an electric

       3       utility with natural gas transmission pipeline in

       4       electric rate base.  And you include in your exhibits

       5       copies of correspondence between Portland General and

       6       FERC in which the utility asks for a waiver of the

       7       FERC's Uniform System of Accounts, correct?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   Why did Portland General ask for a waiver of

      10       the FERC's accounting requirements?

      11            A.   I believe Portland General felt that because

      12       it was -- the pipeline in question was an interstate

      13       pipeline, it had some doubt as to whether or not it

      14       would be required to file a Form 2, or whether the

      15       accounting requirements for interstate pipelines would

      16       apply to them.

      17            Q.   And was that in part because they were only

      18       going to provide minimal interruptible service on the

      19       pipeline and the rest was going to serve themselves?

      20            A.   No, I don't think that was -- I don't think

      21       that entered into what their thought process was.  I

      22       just think that that pipeline facility transported gas

      23       that crossed state lines, and they had some doubt as to

      24       whether they would be required to file a Form 2, which

      25       is typically required for interstate gas pipelines, and
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       1       whether the gas accounting rules would apply to them.

       2            Q.   Are you aware that the Public Service

       3       Commission has adopted the FERC's Uniform System of

       4       Accounts in its accounting rules for electric utilities

       5       and gas utilities?

       6            A.   That was my understanding, yes.

       7            Q.   Do you agree that Portland General asserted in

       8       that series of letters that the waiver should be

       9       approved because even if additional assets were built,

      10       the vast majority would continue to serve the pipeline

      11       owner's facilities?

      12                 MR. BUTLER:  Excuse me.  I would ask that Ms.

      13       Brown point Mr. Guest to where specifically she is

      14       referring in the exhibits she's examining him about.

      15                 MS. BROWN:  Well, we are referring to Page 2

      16       of 2, Exhibit JKG-4, and if you will give us a minute we

      17       will find the other one.

      18       BY MS. BROWN:

      19            Q.   If you will look at Page 2 of 2, JKG-4, the

      20       first full paragraph.  Do you see that?

      21            A.   Yes.

      22            Q.   This is a letter from you to Portland General

      23       allowing for the waiver, correct?  Will you read that

      24       paragraph.

      25            A.   Portland seeks a waiver of use of the gas
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       1       accounts in accounting for its portion of the Kelso

       2       Beaver Pipeline as it will continue to be used to

       3       service Portland Beaver Generation Plant and expected

       4       usage by other shippers on the pipeline if requested is

       5       expected to be minimal.  Now, that is the -- that is a

       6       statement of what Portland seeks and what their thought

       7       process may have been.  The reason that their request

       8       was granted, though, was because the pipeline was being

       9       used to provide transportation service to Portland

      10       General's electric generating station.

      11            Q.   I'm not sure I know the answer to this

      12       question, but I am going to ask it anyway.  If FPL wants

      13       to account for its EnergySecure assets on its electric

      14       utility books, would it need to ask for a waiver of the

      15       FERC's or the Florida Commission's accounting

      16       requirements?  And, if so, from whom would it ask for

      17       the waiver and when would it need to ask for it?  I

      18       apologize for the multiple question.

      19            A.   First of all, I think it's a legal question as

      20       to whether they do or they don't need to seek a waiver,

      21       and it depends on the facts and circumstances.  There is

      22       a provision in the system of accounts that if an

      23       interpretation is doubtful, they can seek an

      24       interpretive ruling from the Commission, and I would

      25       assume that if the Florida PSC has adopted the FERC's
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       1       Uniform System of Accounts the same would be true and

       2       they could make that request to the Florida PSC, or they

       3       could make it to the Federal Energy Regulatory

       4       Commission, or they could make it to both.  They could

       5       do the same for any waiver request, as well.  As to

       6       timing as to when they would need to request that

       7       determination, it certainly wouldn't seem to me to be

       8       kind of -- you wouldn't want it to be after you're

       9       facing how to account for the costs.

      10            Q.   So you mean that it would probably be done

      11       sooner rather than later?  Well, if you're getting ready

      12       to build a $1.5 billion pipeline and you are uncertain

      13       about how to account for it and whether or not you need

      14       a waiver, wouldn't you want to ask before you built it?

      15                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry, ask whom?

      16                 MS. BROWN:  Either the FERC or the Florida

      17       Public Service Commission.

      18                 MR. BUTLER:  Well, to the extent your question

      19       refers to FERC, I think I would object to it.  It's

      20       asking about a jurisdiction that doesn't apply to an

      21       intrastate pipeline.

      22                 MS. BROWN:  Well, I think the question of

      23       jurisdiction is still outstanding in this case.

      24                 MR. BUTLER:  Can you read the question again?

      25
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       1       BY MS. BROWN:

       2            Q.   The question was would FPL need to ask for a

       3       waiver of the FERC's or the Florida Commission's

       4       accounting requirements; and, if so, from whom and when?

       5            A.   I think the existing system of accounts is

       6       sufficiently clear that if a pipeline owns and uses a

       7       pipeline for providing transportation service to its

       8       generating stations, it's a pipeline that is used in

       9       electric operations and should be classified as an

      10       electric utility plant.

      11            Q.   Okay.  So are you saying a waiver would not be

      12       required?

      13            A.   A waiver may not be required in this instance

      14       because what triggered the request for a waiver in the

      15       Portland General case was provisions of the Natural Gas

      16       Act which I don't believe apply to the intrastate

      17       pipeline here.

      18                 MS. BROWN:  All right.  Thank you, Mr. Guest.

      19                 We have no further questions.

      20                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, staff.

      21                 Commissioner Skop, you're recognized.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

      23                 Mr. Guest, just three quick questions.  If I

      24       think I heard your testimony correctly, I believe you

      25       testified that the length of an intrastate pipeline is
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       1       not determinative of whether rate base recovery should

       2       be allowed under the FERC Uniform System of Accounts, is

       3       that correct?

       4                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And I think that

       6       you also testified, although I don't have an order and I

       7       will get to that in a second, that the Commission

       8       previously allowed FPL to earn a rate of return on the

       9       36-mile Martin to 45th Street Terminal pipeline, is that

      10       correct, through the fuel clause?

      11                 THE WITNESS:  They permitted FPL to collect a

      12       return, yes.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  If either FPL or

      14       staff as a late-filed could get a copy of that order to

      15       definitize what treatment was given to that specific

      16       pipeline, I think it's bearing upon the issue before us.

      17                 MS. BROWN:  Yes, Commissioner.  I think that

      18       is a Commission order that the Commission can always

      19       take official recognition of, and we can include it in

      20       the recommendation.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Well, if somebody could

      22       research that for me.

      23                 MR. BUTLER:  Also, Commissioner Skop, that is

      24       essentially what we will be addressing in Late-filed

      25       Exhibit 96, so we will be specifically covering that.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  And then just

       2       one final question, Mr. Guest.  I guess in your

       3       professional opinion, Mr. Self has asked a bunch of

       4       questions relating to what other states have done, what

       5       FERC has done in the past.  Florida, I think, inherently

       6       is a little bit different from other parts of the states

       7       in our nation, so I'm going to just ask a general

       8       question.  If you can answer it comfortably; if not,

       9       fine.

      10                 But in your professional opinion, should other

      11       factors such as the peninsula nature of Florida, fuel

      12       transportation diversification, supply interpretation

      13       risk, and FPL's heavy dependence on natural gas be

      14       considered within the decision-making calculus that this

      15       Commission considers when whether to include the

      16       proposed project in the rate base?

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do, and some of those

      18       same factors I took into consideration in kind of

      19       looking at how the costs should be classified for

      20       accounting purposes.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Commissioner.

      23       Commissioners, anything further from the bench?

      24                 Ms. Brown.

      25                 MS. BROWN:  I have one further follow-up
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       1       question that I missed before, if I might ask.

       2                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Let's see.  Go ahead.  Let's

       3       see what you've got there.

       4                 MS. BROWN:  Well, it relates to your earlier

       5       discussion about the Sunshine Pipeline case.

       6                      FURTHER CROSS EXAMINATION

       7       BY MS. BROWN:

       8            Q.   Are you aware of how other intrastate

       9       pipelines are treated in Florida with respect to

      10       corporate structure?

      11                 MR. BUTLER:  I assume you're asking about

      12       intrastate pipelines generally, not just ones owned by

      13       an electric utility?

      14                 MS. BROWN:  Yes, intrastate pipelines

      15       generally.

      16                 THE WITNESS:  And I'm not familiar with

      17       Sunshine.

      18                 MS. BROWN:  Okay.  That's all right.  Thanks.

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

      20                 Anything further from the bench?

      21                 Redirect.

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  Briefly, Mr. Chairman.

      23                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      24       BY MR. BUTLER:

      25            Q.   The first, and this is truly a clarification.
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       1       You gave an answer to Ms. Brown toward the end of her

       2       questioning that began with the phrase, if I understood

       3       you correctly, if a pipeline owns and uses a pipeline.

       4       Did you mean to say if a utility, an electric utility

       5       owns?

       6            A.   I'm sorry, yes.

       7            Q.   I just wanted to clarify the record on that.

       8                 Mr. Self had asked you a question about a

       9       pipeline that would serve more than one plant.  In your

      10       opinion, would it make a difference in terms of the

      11       proper accounting for a pipeline whether the pipeline

      12       served one power plant that a utility owned versus

      13       serving two or more power plants owned by the same

      14       utility?

      15            A.   No, it would not make a difference.  Again,

      16       the accounting determination is made based upon the

      17       function that the assets will perform.

      18            Q.   Similarly, Mr. Self discussed, or asked you

      19       whether you were aware if the 18-inch pipeline from

      20       Martin to Riviera crosses a county boundary.  Would it

      21       make any difference in the proper accounting for a gas

      22       pipeline owned by an electric utility whether it crossed

      23       a county boundary or not?

      24            A.   No, it would not.

      25            Q.   He asked you about the distinction between
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       1       mainline and lateral pipelines.  Would it make a

       2       difference, in your mind, in the proper accounting

       3       treatment for an electric -- of for a gas pipeline owned

       4       by an electric utility whether it was characterized as a

       5       mainline or a lateral?

       6            A.   No, it would not.  Again, it is what function

       7       is the asset performing, and if it's performing a gas

       8       transportation function to the generating station, it

       9       would be classified as electric plant.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you, Mr. Guest.  Those are

      11       all the questions I have.

      12                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Exhibits.

      13                 MR. BUTLER:  I would move the admission of

      14       Exhibits 46 through 49.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self, any objection?

      16                 MR. SELF:  No objection.

      17                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it

      18       done, Exhibits 46 through 49.  Okay.

      19                 Will we see Mr. Guest again?

      20                 (Exhibits 46 through 49 admitted into the

      21       record.)

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  You will not.  This is his only

      23       appearance.

      24                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Hasta la bye bye.

      25                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Have a great one.  Call your

       2       next witness.

       3                 MR. BUTLER:  FPL calls Jonathan D. Ogur.  I'm

       4       sorry, Mr. Chairman, I don't believe this witness has

       5       been sworn.

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Would you please

       7       stand and raise your right hand.

       8                 (Witness sworn.)

       9                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Please be seated.

      10                           JONATHAN D. OGUR

      11       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power and

      12       Light Company, and having been duly sworn, testified as

      13       follows:

      14                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

      15       BY MR. PERKO:

      16            Q.   Could you please state your full name and

      17       business address for the record?

      18            A.   Yes.  I'm Jonathan D. Ogur, and my business

      19       address is 1155 15th Street Northwest, Suite 400,

      20       Washington, D.C. 20005.

      21            Q.   And by whom are you employed and in what

      22       position?

      23            A.   I'm an associate with Brown, Williams,

      24       Moorhead, and Quinn, Incorporated, Energy Consultants.

      25            Q.   And, Mr. Ogur, did you prepare and cause to be
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       1       filed Supplemental Testimony consisting of 21 pages in

       2       this docket?

       3            A.   Yes, I did.

       4            Q.   And along with that testimony, did you submit

       5       two exhibits labeled JD-01 and JD-02?

       6            A.   Yes, that's correct.

       7            Q.   Have you filed an errata relating to your

       8       testimony and exhibits on July 24th?

       9            A.   I have not.

      10            Q.   You have not.  Do you have any changes or

      11       additions to your testimony?

      12            A.   No, I don't.

      13            Q.   Do you have any changes or additions to your

      14       exhibits?

      15            A.   No, I don't.

      16            Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions in

      17       your testimony today, would your answers be the same?

      18            A.   Yes, they would.

      19                 MR. PERKO:  At this time I'd like to move the

      20       Prefiled Supplemental Testimony of Jonathan D. Ogur into

      21       the record as if read.

      22                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  The prefiled testimony of

      23       the witness will be entered into the record as though

      24       read.

      25
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       1       BY MR. PERKO:

       2            Q.   Mr. Ogur, have you prepared a summary of your

       3       testimony?

       4            A.   Yes, I have.

       5            Q.   Would you please provide that at this time.

       6            A.   Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners.

       7                 In my supplemental testimony, I analyze the

       8       impact of FPL's Florida EnergySecure Line on economic

       9       efficiency and competition.  My analysis examines

      10       Florida markets for gas transmission and delivered gas.

      11       I conclude that the Florida EnergySecure Line will

      12       promote economic efficiency and competition in these

      13       markets.

      14                 Let's first consider transmission markets.  In

      15       these markets, the Florida EnergySecure Line will

      16       promote economic efficiency because it is the least-cost

      17       alternative to supply increased capacity over the life

      18       of the project.  It will promote competition because it

      19       is a new entrant in markets whose structure is conducive

      20       to the exercise of market power.

      21                 Gas transmission markets in Florida are

      22       characterized by high concentration.  There are only

      23       four pipelines serving Florida, and most markets are

      24       served by only one or two pipelines.  These markets are

      25       also characterized by low levels of excess capacity.

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    430

       1       The incumbent pipelines, FGT and Gulfstream, are fully

       2       subscribed.  Entry by the Florida EnergySecure Line will

       3       promote competition and put downward pressure on prices.

       4                 Next, let's consider gas markets in Florida.

       5       In these markets, the Florida EnergySecure Line will

       6       promote economic efficiency by increasing the diversity

       7       and reliability of gas supply sources.  It will increase

       8       the proportion from unconventional shale gas supplies,

       9       and it will decrease the proportion from conventional

      10       Gulf of Mexico and Gulf Coast gas supplies.

      11                 The EnergySecure Line will promote competition

      12       in delivered gas markets by permitting the entry of new

      13       gas suppliers in Florida, and this entry will put

      14       downward pressure on the delivered gas prices in

      15       Florida.

      16                 Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, in considering

      17       the issues in this proceeding, I believe it's important

      18       to remember that the Florida EnergySecure Line will

      19       increase economic efficiency and competition resulting

      20       in substantial benefits to Florida consumers.

      21                 That completes my summary.  Thank you for your

      22       attention.

      23                 MR. PERKO:  We tender the witness for

      24       cross-examination.

      25                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Self, questions on
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       1       cross?

       2                 MR. SELF:  No questions.

       3                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  No questions.  Okay.  Are

       4       there questions from staff for this witness?

       5                 MS. BROWN:  Yes, we have just a few.

       6                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       7       BY MS. BROWN:

       8            Q.   Hi, Mr. Ogur.  On Page 5 of your supplemental

       9       testimony you state that FPL may sell 200 MMcfs per day

      10       off the EnergySecure Line directly, and then further on

      11       Page 16 you use the term directly to third parties.

      12       Can.

      13                 You explain what you mean by the term

      14       directly?

      15            A.   Yes.  There are two options really for the 200

      16       MMcf per day of capacity on the Florida EnergySecure

      17       Line that will not be used initially to supply the FPL

      18       power plants.  One is to release capacity on Gulfstream

      19       and FGT.  The other is to make sales of capacity on the

      20       EnergySecure Line itself.  And so directly simply refers

      21       to those sales of capacity on the EnergySecure Line that

      22       are made to third parties.

      23            Q.   All right, thank you.  If FPL were to need all

      24       capacity on the EnergySecure Line, as well as its

      25       contracted capacity on FGT and Gulfstream, would this
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       1       encourage the discounting of pipeline capacity rates on

       2       any of the pipelines?

       3            A.   Yes, I believe it would.

       4            Q.   How would that happen?

       5            A.   Well, as I point out in my testimony, if you

       6       define the markets for gas transmission services in

       7       Florida properly, you start with very disaggregated

       8       markets to individual receipt points on the FPL system

       9       and then move up to slightly more aggregated markets to

      10       the FPL system as a whole, transmission to that system.

      11                 The entry of the Florida EnergySecure Line

      12       will provide a new competitor to serve those markets,

      13       and the result of that new entry will be downward

      14       pressure on prices in those gas transmission markets.

      15            Q.   Even though the new EnergySecure Line will not

      16       be used to compete in the gas transmission capacity

      17       markets?

      18            A.   I would not agree that it would not be used to

      19       compete in the gas transmission market.  Again, the

      20       important thing is to define that market or those

      21       markets, there is really more than one, correctly.  And,

      22       again, starting from the least aggregated of the gas

      23       transmission markets, namely to specific receipt points

      24       on the FPL system, we have a new entrant to serve those

      25       markets.  The effect of new entry is to put powerful
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       1       pressure, downward pressure on prices and to promote

       2       competition.

       3                 So I very strongly would conclude that there

       4       will be additional competition from this.  In the case

       5       of some of the receipt points, there is only one

       6       incumbent, so we would have a second supplier of gas

       7       transmission services.  To the FPL system as a whole,

       8       there are two incumbents.  We would have a third in that

       9       case.

      10            Q.   All right, thank you.

      11                 Would you agree that FPL's proposed pipeline

      12       is requesting regulatory treatment for the recovery of

      13       pipeline costs in electric rate base which is different

      14       from the regulatory treatment afforded other Florida

      15       FERC regulated interstate transmission pipelines as well

      16       as other Florida Public Service Commission regulated

      17       intrastate transmission pipelines?

      18            A.   Let me break that down a little bit if I could

      19       in my answer.  I'm aware that it's different from the

      20       regulatory treatment of the interstate pipelines, the

      21       FERC regulated pipelines in Florida.  I am not as

      22       familiar with the regulation of the intrastate pipelines

      23       in Florida.

      24            Q.   Do you believe that this different regulatory

      25       treatment might have adverse market implications?
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       1            A.   No, I don't.

       2            Q.   If FPL's proposed pipeline is approved as

       3       proposed, FPL's pipeline would have the competitive

       4       advantage of being treated as electric plant with the

       5       regulatory assessment fee of .0072 percent while other

       6       intrastate pipelines not included in electric rate base

       7       would be assessed a fee of .25 percent, correct?

       8            A.   I am not familiar with the concept of a

       9       regulatory assessment fee, and so I really don't know

      10       the answer to that question.

      11            Q.   Right.  But we're in the process of copying

      12       one of those rules.  It's the Commission's Rules

      13       25-7.101, Regulatory Assessment Fees for Gas Utilities,

      14       Intrastate Pipeline Gas Facilities, and 25-6.0131,

      15       Regulatory Assessment Fees for Investor-owned Electric

      16       Companies.  We will pass that out to you so you can

      17       look.

      18                 We are also passing out a Public Service

      19       Commission order that established that .25 percent.

      20                 MR. PERKO:  Mr. Chairman, I'm not sure that

      21       this relates to the witness' direct testimony at all.

      22       I'm not seeing a direct relationship here.

      23                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Let's just kind of see where

      24       we're going.

      25                 Ms. Brown.
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       1                 MS. BROWN:  Yes.  The reason that I asked

       2       about adverse market implications was so that I can then

       3       demonstrate that perhaps there are some differences in

       4       regulatory treatment.

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Well, let's kind of just let

       6       it go for now, Mr. Perko.  Obviously you're entitled to

       7       object at any point in time, but let's just see where it

       8       is going right now.  Make sure that all the parties --

       9                 MS. BROWN:  Actually that's the end of the

      10       questions on the regulatory assessment fees and the

      11       difference between them.

      12                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Hang on for a second.  Let's

      13       make sure everyone is on the same page here.  Does the

      14       witness -- Mr. Ogur, do you have this information?

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have the

      16       order.

      17                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  There's two other

      18       pages, right?  Did you get those?

      19                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I have all three pages now.

      20                 MS. BROWN:  All right.

      21                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

      22       BY MS. BROWN:

      23            Q.   Would you agree that if FPL's pipeline is

      24       approved as proposed, FPL would not be required to set

      25       up a separate affiliate to own and operate the pipeline,
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       1       correct?

       2            A.   That's my understanding, yes.

       3            Q.   And isn't it true that by not being required

       4       to set up a separate ownership arrangement with its

       5       additional attendant costs, FPL would have a competitive

       6       market advantage?

       7            A.   Over whom?

       8            Q.   Over other intrastate and interstate gas

       9       transmission companies.

      10            A.   No, I would not agree with that.

      11            Q.   We are passing out one more exhibit for you.

      12       Actually it is already in Staff's Comprehensive Exhibit.

      13       It's Interrogatory Number 112.  If you would take a

      14       minute to read through that interrogatory.

      15            A.   This is the last document that was given to

      16       me?

      17            Q.   Yes.  Staff's Seventh Set of Interrogatories,

      18       Interrogatory Number 112.

      19            A.   Yes.  Okay, I will.  (Pause.)

      20                 Yes, I have read that.

      21            Q.   And you see that the answer to this

      22       interrogatory -- the question is what is the accounting

      23       treatment for an intrastate pipeline when it is

      24       structured as a separate entity as opposed to being

      25       included in an electric company's rate base.  And just
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       1       to paraphrase the answer, it begins to discuss the

       2       establishment of separate financial statements, separate

       3       capital structure, accounting systems to track capital

       4       property, tax reporting and general accounting

       5       functions.  Do you see that?

       6            A.   Yes, I see that.

       7            Q.   And then if you'll look to the order that we

       8       passed out.  Do you see that?

       9            A.   I see the order, yes.

      10            Q.   All right.  If you would look at Page 5, the

      11       second full paragraph there.

      12            A.   Yes, I see that.

      13            Q.   If you would skim that order, you'll see that

      14       the Commission approved the establishment of an

      15       intrastate pipeline as long as it was a separate

      16       affiliate from a local distribution company.  Do you see

      17       that?

      18            A.   Where in that order does that appear?  Could

      19       you direct me to the place?

      20            Q.   Give me a minute and I'll find it.

      21            A.   Sure.

      22            Q.   If I look at the first background paragraph

      23       halfway down, the order states, "By Order

      24       PSC-06-0023-DS-GP, we found that Peninsula, as a

      25       corporation with a separate legal identity from its
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       1       parent, qualified as a natural gas transmission company

       2       as defined in Section 368.103."  Do you see that?

       3            A.   Yes, I see that.

       4            Q.   So, back to my question, isn't it true that by

       5       not being required to set up a separate ownership

       6       arrangement with its additional attendant costs, FPL

       7       would have a competitive market advantage over at least

       8       intrastate natural gas transmission pipelines?

       9            A.   Well, no, I would not agree.  I think if you

      10       want to talk about competitive advantages -- I mean, in

      11       the first place, my main focus in my analysis is on

      12       competition, promoting competition.  The concept of

      13       competitive advantages it seems to me relates more to

      14       effects on competitors rather than effects on

      15       competition.  So it really is not the main focus of my

      16       testimony.  Nevertheless, I think in thinking about this

      17       secondary effect on competitors you would have to look

      18       at the relevant market in which this concern is -- this

      19       effect is allegedly taking place.  In other words, in my

      20       analysis in my testimony, I defined specific relevant

      21       markets in which the Florida EnergySecure Line will be

      22       entering as a new entrant against very large entrenched

      23       incumbents.  And in order to have some effect on

      24       intrastate competitors they would have to be in that

      25       relevant market.
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       1                 In fact, in the relevant markets that I

       2       analyzed that the Florida EnergySecure Line will enter,

       3       I'm not aware of any intrastate pipelines.  So in that

       4       sense, I don't see that there would be a competitive --

       5       adverse competitive effect on other intrastate

       6       competitors.

       7            Q.   If FPL is permitted to recover the costs and

       8       investment associated with the EnergySecure Line in its

       9       monopoly electric rate base, would the Commission's

      10       action here create an incentive for other Florida

      11       electric utilities to propose similar pipeline projects

      12       due to the increase in earnings to shareholders versus a

      13       pass-through of fuel costs?

      14            A.   I really don't know the answer to that

      15       question.

      16            Q.   All right.  Assuming for purposes of

      17       discussion that the Commission's action here would

      18       create an incentive for other electric utilities to

      19       follow suit, would you agree that if other major

      20       pipelines are placed into electric rate base and

      21       shielded from market forces, this may have an adverse

      22       effect on the natural gas markets in the state of

      23       Florida?

      24            A.   I disagree with the premise of your question

      25       that they would be shielded from market forces.  I think
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       1       the Florida EnergySecure Line is very much not shielded

       2       from market forces.  Whether despite or even if it's

       3       included in electric rate base, the Florida EnergySecure

       4       Line is a new entrant trying to enter highly

       5       concentrated markets now served by large incumbent

       6       pipelines that have large market shares, maybe

       7       exercising market power, maybe reducing rates in

       8       response to the threat of entry, which could have the

       9       effect of discouraging entry and making it unprofitable.

      10                 So I would disagree that the Florida

      11       EnergySecure Line is shielded from the effects of

      12       competition.  I mean, we have already seen declines in

      13       FGT's bid for alternatives to the Florida EnergySecure

      14       Line, to some extent in response to the self-supply

      15       alternative of FPL.  So I would not agree that it's

      16       shielded from competition.

      17                 MS. BROWN:  All right.  Thank you.

      18                 No further questions.

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, staff.

      20                 Anything from the bench?

      21                 Commissioner Skop, you're recognized, sir.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      23                 Good afternoon, Mr. Ogur, or Doctor Ogur.

      24                 THE WITNESS:  Good afternoon, Commissioner

      25       Skop.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I noticed in your prefiled

       2       testimony that you received a Ph.D in Economics from

       3       Cornell, so I guess you're qualified to speak as to

       4       competition and market harm potential.  I know staff has

       5       addressed that in great detail, but I wanted to go back

       6       to something that was previously mentioned by you and

       7       make sure I understand what your testimony is.

       8                 If the proposed pipeline project that, you

       9       know, has initially excess capacity were to be used

      10       solely for electric generation and the needs of FPL as a

      11       utility, I think, if I understood you correctly, that

      12       your testimony would be that there would be no market

      13       harm associated with that to the extent that they

      14       weren't seeking to penetrate other markets with the

      15       excess capacity.  Is that correct?

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Commissioner, quite the

      17       contrary.  Not only would there be no market harm, there

      18       would be promotion of competition in the markets that I

      19       analyzed.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Right.  And that's where I

      21       was trying to get to, but I'm trying to definitize it to

      22       the extent that the capacity is related to core

      23       operations as opposed to trying to go -- you know, bring

      24       traditional LDC customers over to some other market

      25       service or what have you.
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       1                 But with respect to the current pipelines that

       2       are serviced, I mean, you have FGT and you have

       3       Gulfstream, and so FPL I'm sure negotiates the best deal

       4       it can get for its customers by leveraging the two

       5       existing pipelines.  But to some degree they would be a

       6       captive customer because we're capacity constrained in

       7       terms of what we can bring in the state to serve

       8       generation needs.

       9                 So I think, if I heard you correctly, the

      10       additional pipeline would probably immediately have a

      11       downward price pressure on additional capacity on a

      12       forward-going basis, is that correct?

      13                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, that's correct,

      14       Commissioner.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Now, if the excess

      16       capacity were used to perhaps -- and I think I have this

      17       right -- horizontally integrate into other traditional

      18       LDC functions, such as, you know, looking for big box

      19       retailers to take some of this excess capacity, there

      20       could be potential market harm, or in your professional

      21       opinion could there be potential market harm associated

      22       with that to the existing gas companies operating within

      23       the state?

      24                 THE WITNESS:  Commissioner, I would not call

      25       that market harm.  Rather, I would call that potentially
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       1       adverse effects on other competitors rather than on

       2       market competition.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

       4                 THE WITNESS:  I would make that distinction.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  That is probably fair, a

       6       better one.  Maybe my word choice was a little too

       7       harsh.  I didn't mean it that way.  But, yes, certainly,

       8       providing additional competition is generally a good

       9       thing; but, you know, if it comes at the expense of a

      10       new market entrant, again, there could be some adverse

      11       effects, as I think that you mentioned.  But that was

      12       just what I wanted to try and clarify or flesh out based

      13       upon what I heard in the staff questions.

      14                 Thank you.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Thank you, Commissioner.

      16                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Commissioners.

      17                 Anything further from the bench?

      18                 Redirect?

      19                 MR. PERKO:  No redirect.

      20                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Exhibits.  I think we're

      21       looking at 50 and 51.  Mr. Self, any objection?

      22                 MR. SELF:  No objections.

      23                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it

      24       done.  That will be Exhibits 50 and 51.

      25                 (Exhibit Number 50 and 51 admitted into the
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       1       record.)

       2                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Now, do we have Mr. Ogur

       3       coming back for rebuttal?  Okay.  You are on recess.

       4       Call your next witness.

       5                 MR. PERKO:  FPL calls Timothy C. Sexton.

       6                 Mr. Sexton, have you been sworn?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  No, I have not.

       8                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Would you please stand and

       9       raise your right hand.

      10                 (Witness sworn.)

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Please be

      12       seated.

      13                          TIMOTHY C. SEXTON

      14       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power and

      15       Light Company, and having been duly sworn, testified as

      16       follows:

      17                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

      18       BY MR. PERKO:

      19            Q.   Could you please state your full name and

      20       business address for the record?

      21            A.   Yes.  My name is Timothy C. Sexton, and my

      22       business address is 14811 St. Mary's Lane, Houston,

      23       Texas 77079.

      24            Q.   Mr. Sexton, did you prepare and cause to be

      25       filed Direct Testimony consisting of 58 pages in this
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       1       case along with exhibits labeled TCS-1 through TCS-7?

       2            A.   Yes, I did.

       3            Q.   And did you prepare an errata sheet that was

       4       filed on July 24th?

       5            A.   Yes, I did.

       6            Q.   Other than the changes noted on the errata,

       7       are there any other changes to your testimony or

       8       exhibits?

       9            A.   No, there are not.

      10            Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions today

      11       that are in your testimony, would your answers be the

      12       same?

      13            A.   Yes, they would.

      14                 MR. PERKO:  At this time, Mr. Chairman, we

      15       would ask to introduce the testimony, Prefiled Testimony

      16       of Timothy C. Sexton into the record as if read.

      17                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of

      18       the witness will be inserted into the record as though

      19       read.

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. PERKO:

       2            Q.   Mr. Sexton, have you prepared a summary of

       3       your testimony?

       4            A.   Yes, I have.

       5            Q.   Could you provide that now, please.

       6            A.   I sure can.

       7                 Good afternoon, Chairman Carter and

       8       Commissioners.  The purpose of my testimony is to

       9       provide a third party review of the existing natural gas

      10       pipeline infrastructure as well as the natural gas

      11       supply access provided by this infrastructure to Florida

      12       markets.  My testimony also reviews infrastructure

      13       expansions that are required to meet FPL's future

      14       natural gas fuel requirements.  My testimony reviews

      15       FPL's solicitation and proposal evaluation process that

      16       resulted in the decision to pursue the Florida

      17       EnergySecure Line project.

      18                 Finally, my testimony presents the results of

      19       my independent cost savings analysis which confirm that

      20       the Florida EnergySecure Line project is the most

      21       cost-effective alternative to meet FPL's natural gas

      22       transportation needs.

      23                 As I explained in my testimony, the two

      24       interstate pipelines currently serving the bulk of the

      25       natural gas demand in the state of Florida, Florida Gas
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       1       Transmission and Gulfstream, are substantially sold out

       2       on a long-term firm basis and cannot provide the

       3       incremental 400 million cubic feet per day of natural

       4       gas needed at FPL's Cape Canaveral and Riviera Beach

       5       Energy Centers without incremental expansions.  As a

       6       result, new pipeline capacity is needed to meet FPL's

       7       incremental natural gas supply requirements.

       8                 As to supply access, the vast majority of gas

       9       supplies available via the incumbent pipelines, FGT and

      10       Gulfstream, are derived from the offshore Gulf of Mexico

      11       and onshore Gulf Coast supply areas.  These supply

      12       sources have been declining over the past several years

      13       and are projected to continue to decline in the near

      14       future.

      15                 In contrast to these declining supply sources,

      16       unconventional sources have been growing and are

      17       projected to continue to grow in the future.  As a

      18       result, I conclude that FPL made the correct decision in

      19       developing a supply diversification strategy that

      20       targets these unconventional supplies available at

      21       Transco Station 85, which is the upstream receipt point

      22       for the Company E Interstate Pipeline that will serve

      23       the Florida EnergySecure Line project.

      24                 With respect to the Florida EnergySecure Line

      25       project itself, in addition to the direct economic

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    507

       1       benefits provided by the project, my testimony concludes

       2       that the project will also provide benefits associated

       3       with supply diversification, protection against single

       4       pipe outages, operational benefits resulting from

       5       multiple delivering pipelines, and long-term economic

       6       benefits of pipe-on-pipe competition.

       7                 As to the process undertaken by FPL to

       8       determine the best option to expand natural gas pipeline

       9       capacity available to meet future needs, FPL issued a

      10       solicitation to a broad cross-section of pipeline

      11       operators, including FGT and Gulfstream, requesting bids

      12       to provide infrastructure expansion alternatives to meet

      13       FPL's future natural gas supply needs.  Within that

      14       solicitation, FPL made it clear to the bidders that it

      15       would also be considering a self-build alternative.

      16                 Based on my review of the solicitation and the

      17       responses received, I conclude that FPL evaluated the

      18       various proposals in an objective and fair manner, and

      19       that the solicitation process was effective in providing

      20       FPL with a full understanding of available pipeline

      21       alternatives.

      22                 Finally, I developed an independent evaluation

      23       of the overall long-term cost of gas impact associated

      24       with the Florida EnergySecure Line versus the next most

      25       competitive proposal received through the solicitation
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       1       process.  As discussed in my testimony, based on the

       2       results of my economic evaluation and the supply

       3       diversification and reliability benefits of the Florida

       4       EnergySecure Line, I conclude that FPL made the best

       5       choice for its customers in selecting the Florida

       6       EnergySecure Line project to meet its future gas supply

       7       needs.

       8                 MR. PERKO:  We tender the witness for

       9       cross-examination.

      10                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

      11                 Mr. Self.

      12                 MR. SELF:  No questions, Mr. Chairman.

      13                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Staff?

      14                 MS. BROWN:  No questions.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Skop.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      17                 Just to Mr. Butler, were you able to get that

      18       point clarified in terms of Mr. Sexton's rebuttal

      19       testimony and the cumulative present value revenue

      20       requirement difference between his and the prior

      21       witness?

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  I think so.  What we

      23       understand -- first of all, to be sure we understand

      24       your question.  There is a figure that is essentially

      25       $580 million as a total benefit that shows up in what
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       1       Mr. Enjamio uses as his example.  But if you look at

       2       what Mr. Sexton has, there is essentially a $600 million

       3       difference subtracting one number from the other.  Is

       4       that the differential or the discrepancy that you were

       5       pointing out?

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  No.  Let me be a little

       7       more clear.

       8                 In Page 7 of Mr. Sexton's rebuttal testimony

       9       on Lines 6 through 7 he indicates that the net present

      10       value of savings utilizing FPL's proposed project versus

      11       the Company B alternative range from 123 million to

      12       757 million.  And I think that differed a little bit

      13       from the other witness' testimony to the extent that I

      14       think the range was a little higher, 240 to 500, subject

      15       to check, whatever the numbers were.

      16                 What I'm concerned about on this rebuttal

      17       testimony is the lower number, the 123 million in

      18       relation to my question about the current gas prices.

      19       Again, the margin there is starting to shrink.  I know

      20       that FPL did extensive analysis on 36 sensitivities and

      21       most of those showed present value.  What I am trying to

      22       do is get a better handle, though, on this particular

      23       instance and how sensitive this number might be to the

      24       choice of gas forecasts that was used in the near-term

      25       November versus current.

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    510

       1                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you for that clarification.

       2       Unfortunately, we are going to have to go back to the

       3       drawing board and get you an answer, because we were

       4       sort of misunderstanding a little bit what your question

       5       was.

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Not a problem.  Thank you.

       7                 MR. BUTLER:  Certainly.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And I will present the

       9       question to Mr. Sexton.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  Okay.  Thank you.

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner, you have

      12       further questions for Mr. Sexton?

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes, Mr. Chair.  Thank

      14       you.

      15                 Again, Mr. Sexton, I don't really want to get

      16       into rebuttal testimony now.  I guess we will take that

      17       up later.  But one of the things, again, I was trying to

      18       ascertain was two-fold.  I know that on Page 24 of your

      19       Direct Testimony you talk about the various

      20       mid-continent shale reserves and their availability.

      21                 Under current pricing for natural gas, do you

      22       expect those reserves to be developed?  I know when

      23       natural gas prices were higher it certainly was

      24       economically feasible to go and try and extract natural

      25       gas from those shale deposits, but at $3.50 or 3.80 per
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       1       MMbtu is it still going to be economically feasible?  Do

       2       we expect those specific shale reserves to materialize

       3       and be brought to market?

       4                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I do in the long-run.  I

       5       think you're right, today the gas price is $3.00.  If

       6       you look forward four or five years, it is quite a bit

       7       more.  The $3.00 is a near-term price, and that

       8       near-term price has resulted in a reduction in the

       9       drilling rigs that are active across the industry, not

      10       just with shale gas, but with conventional supplies.

      11                 However, one thing that you note if you look

      12       at shale gas drilling and production right now, even

      13       with the economic conditions that we have been going

      14       through with gas prices that have been declining over

      15       the past several months, the drilling is still going on.

      16       The rig count has gone down quite a bit, but if you look

      17       at a few public sources, look at the Texas Railroad

      18       Commission, for example, what you will find is that

      19       there's more active wells today than there were at the

      20       end of 2008.

      21                 If you look at information from the Arkansas

      22       Oil and Gas Commission, what you will find is that with

      23       Fayetteville shale, there is more Fayetteville shale gas

      24       being produced today than there was at the end of 2008.

      25                 If we look at the Louisiana Department of
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       1       Natural Resources, what you will find is that there is

       2       four times as many active wells in the Hainesville shale

       3       in the second quarter of 2009 versus what was going on

       4       in 2008.

       5                 So even though the drilling rig activity has

       6       reduced quite a bit, I think the shale gas -- I expect

       7       that to be a major part of the future resource base, and

       8       I think any projection -- if you look at DOE information

       9       from the EIA, the same thing.  They will project that

      10       shale gas is going to be a large part of our resource

      11       base in the future.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And then, secondly,

      13       I guess based on your testimony and that of Witness

      14       Sharra that the Transco 85 interconnection point in

      15       terms of the upstream pipeline is appropriate over that

      16       of the Perryville.  Is that correct for the upstream

      17       pipeline?

      18                 THE WITNESS:  I want to make sure I understand

      19       the question.  I think the Transco Station 85, we

      20       believe, provides access to significant quantities of

      21       shale gas.  As you can see from -- as you read in the

      22       testimony, a lot of pipeline capacity that's going to

      23       Transco Station 85, over 3 Bcf of new capacity that was

      24       supported by producers of shale gas that bought the

      25       capacity to go to Station 85.  So what that provides
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       1       access to is the direct access to the shale gas as well

       2       as gas at the Perryville Hub without the need to build a

       3       pipeline back to Perryville.  I think it may be useful

       4       to look at the map and see where these locations are.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Well, I guess just from my

       6       perspective, and, again, perhaps you can elaborate on

       7       this, it seems that the Transco 85 is kind of like a

       8       crossroads of being able to access gas from many

       9       different directions, whereas the Perryville, although

      10       it is further west and probably proximate to the shale,

      11       it's not as proximate to the east coast final

      12       destinations and it doesn't really kind of leverage some

      13       of the intersections of not only from the Gulf, but from

      14       the east and from the north.  So, again, if you would

      15       just elaborate on that a little bit.  I think it was

      16       covered a lot, extensively in the testimony.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  I'm not sure I understand the

      18       question with respect to east coast from Perryville or

      19       from Station 85.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  It's late in the

      21       day, so my framing of the question is probably not as

      22       good, given our current workload that we have.  But the

      23       discussion was -- I guess FGT was making a substantial

      24       argument that Perryville was the more appropriate

      25       interconnection point in terms of taking gas as a point
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       1       of delivery to bring it to Florida, whereas FPL asserts

       2       that for the upstream pipeline purposes that Transco

       3       Station 85, by virtue of the fact that many producers

       4       have subscribed to the existing pipeline that will

       5       deliver it from Transco 85 to the FGT Station 16 is more

       6       appropriate, and that is what I was trying to --

       7                 THE WITNESS:  And if you don't mind me looking

       8       at the map.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  That's fine.

      10                 THE WITNESS:  Is this still working?  What we

      11       have done here -- this was my Exhibit TCS-9 that was

      12       actually an exhibit to the rebuttal testimony.  We can

      13       start with this, and then this is actually a blow up of

      14       TCS-9, so you can see kind of a real good shot of the

      15       Perryville and Station 85's area.

      16                 But I think your question was first is Station

      17       85 versus Perryville a more appropriate location for FPL

      18       to source gas for these projects.  And if you look at

      19       the location of Station 85 versus the location of

      20       Perryville, in order to get back to Perryville, for

      21       example, you know, Station 85 you would have to go

      22       another 2 or 300 miles to get back to Perryville from

      23       Station 85, or about 250 miles from the start of the FGT

      24       project.

      25                 I think what needs to be said here is that the
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       1       proposal to FPL that came from FGT did not provide

       2       direct access to Perryville.  What it provided was

       3       access to the FGT system in their Zone 3 down here

       4       around Mobile Bay.  Now, in order to get back to

       5       Perryville on the FGT system, someone has to build back

       6       to Perryville.  That's 300 miles of pipe.  So we think

       7       Station 85 is a much more appropriate smaller investment

       8       to get access to shale gas.

       9                 And, in addition, your other question about

      10       Station 85, will there be sufficient volumes of gas, and

      11       I think, once again, the pipelines that have been built

      12       from Perryville to Station 85 over the last few years,

      13       that is 3 Bcf of new capacity that come from shale gas

      14       basins all the way to Transco Station 85, and those

      15       pipelines were supported by the investments of the same

      16       producers of that shale gas supplies.  So those

      17       producers are looking to transport their gas to Station

      18       85 versus other markets.  They're trying to get it out

      19       of east Texas and north Louisiana and down to markets in

      20       the east.  So I think from that perspective, Station 85

      21       is an appropriate location.

      22                 Now, you also mentioned something about

      23       northeast markets that has come up in this conversation.

      24       If you're looking at northeast markets, I think you also

      25       have to realize that Perryville, itself, is a hub with
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       1       many pipelines coming into the Perryville area as well

       2       as going out of the Perryville area.  Those pipelines go

       3       to many markets.  Some go the northeast, some go to the

       4       midwest.  And as with Station 85, Transco does go

       5       towards the northeast markets, but you are looking at a

       6       new 3 Bcf of capacity into a system at a point there

       7       without new capacity going northeast at the current

       8       time.  So you have got 3 Bcf into this area looking for

       9       a market to sell.  It could sell to on-system customers

      10       on Transco, but this is a great opportunity for a new

      11       buyer to go into that market and pick up 400,000 or

      12       600,000 of supplies.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  And I'll

      14       reserve my final question for your rebuttal.  Thank you.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

      16                 Commissioners, anything further from the

      17       bench?

      18                 Redirect?

      19                 MR. PERKO:  No redirect, Your Honor.

      20                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Exhibits.

      21                 MR. PERKO:  We would move Exhibits 52 through

      22       58.

      23                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self, any objections?

      24                 MR. SELF:  No objections.

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it
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       1       done.

       2                 (Exhibit Numbers 52 through 58 admitted into

       3       the record.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  You are on recess.

       5                 Mr. Self, do you need a couple of minutes to

       6       get ready?

       7                 MR. SELF:  Well, yes, sir.  And, in addition,

       8       I believe I have talked with the staff, there was a

       9       group of exhibits that I guess I had misunderstood what

      10       was going as part of the stipulated exhibit list.  And

      11       the staff had suggested, I think, doing it at this time.

      12       Yes?

      13                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Ms. Brown.

      14                 MS. BROWN:  I thought we were going to wait

      15       until the bitter end, but maybe I misunderstood, until

      16       the end of rebuttal testimony.

      17                 MR. SELF:  Okay.  That's fine.

      18                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Is that okay?

      19                 MS. BROWN:  And we'll have a chance to read

      20       from the same page by the time we get there, I promise,

      21       Mr. Chairman.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Somebody flag that so

      23       when we get to that point we'll be ready for it.

      24                 Mr. Self, are you ready?  Do you need a minute

      25       to --
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       1                 MR. SELF:  Could we take just five minutes,

       2       please?

       3                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners, we will come

       4       back at ten after.

       5                 (Brief recess.)

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  We are back on the record.

       7                 We have had a meeting of the minds with the

       8       parties and staff, and because we are beginning a new

       9       section, FGT will be doing their case in chief and they

      10       won't have an opportunity to really get going, and there

      11       is a substantial amount of cross for this witness, we

      12       will just start anew tomorrow morning at 9:30.

      13                 And, like I said to you guys earlier, make

      14       sure you eat your Wheaties.  Make sure you eat your

      15       Wheaties, because we have got a long day tomorrow.

      16       Okay.

      17                 We are adjourned.

      18                 (The hearing adjourned at 5:10 p.m.)
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